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FEDERAL RESERVE BANK of NEW YORK

33 LIBERTY STREET, NEW YORK, NY 10045-0001
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

March 8, 2016

To the Board of Directors of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York:

The management of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York r(Bank) IS responsible for the
Preparaﬂon and fair presentation of the Statements of Condition as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and
he Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income, and Statements of Changes In Capital for the years
then ended (the financial statements). The financial statements have been 8repared In conformity with the
accounting principles, Pohm_es, and practices established l\tzy the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System as set forth in the Financial Accounting Manualfor Federal Reserve Banks (FAM), and,
as such, iriclude some amounts that are based on management Hudg_ments and estimates. To our
knowledge, the financial statements are, in all material respects, fai IW presented in conformity with the
accountmgf principles, policies and practices documented in the FA
necessary for such fair presentation.

and include all disclosurres

The management of the Bank is resEJonsmI_e for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over finanCial reporting as it relates to the financial statements, The Bank’s internal control over
financial reporting is de5|?ned to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with
the FAM, The Bank’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and Procedures that
p) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

ransactions and dispositions of the Bank’s assets; (i) provide reasonable asurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with FAM, and that the
Bank’s receipts and exPendnures_ are bemg made only in accordance with authorizations of its
management and directors; and (jii) provicie reasonable assurance regardm? prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Bank’s assets that could have a material
effect on its financial statements.

Even effective internal control, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations, including
the possibility of human error, and therefore can provide only reasonable assurance with, respect to the
preparation of reliable financial statements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future

erlods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
hat the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. . .
The m_anage_ment of the Bank assessed its internal control over financial reporting based upon the criteria
established in the Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission, Based on this assessment, we believe that the
Bank maintaingd effective internal control over financial reporting.

illiam C. Dudley g/_lichae,l Strine_ Bie_len E. Mucciolo
resident irstVice Presicent rincipal Financial Officer

T 212.720.5000 | F 212.720.6767 | E general.info@ny.frb.org W www.newyorkfed.org



KPMG LLP
345 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10154-0102

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Governors ofthe Federal Reserve System
and the Board of Directors ofthe Federal Reserve Bank of New York:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of condition ofthe Federal Reserve Bank of New
York and subsidiaries as of Deceémber 31, 2015, and the related consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income and changes in capital for the year then ended. We also have audited the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on
criteria established in_ Internal Control - Integrated Framework f2013 issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Qrganizations of the Treadwar Commission. The Federal Reserve Bank of New York’s
managemeént is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment ofthe effectiveness of internal cantrol gver financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on fhese consolidated financial statements and an opinion.on the
Federal Reserve ‘Bank of New York’s intemal control over financial reporting based on our audit, The
accompanying consolidated financial statements ofthe Federal Reserve Bank ofNew York and subsidiaries
as of Decémber 31, 2014 and for the year then ended were audited by other auditors whose rePort thereon
dated March 11, 2015, expressed an"unmodified opinion on those Consolidated financial statements and
contained an emphasis of matter paragra;l)h that described the Federal Reserve Bank of New York’s basis of
accounting discussed in Note 3to the'2014 consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit ofthe consolidated financial statements in accordance with the, auditing standards
of the Public Company Accountln? QOversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and in accordance with
auditing standards generalh(_ accepted in the United States of America. We conducted our audit of internal
control over financial reporting in accordance with the audmn_? standards ofthe PCAOB and in accordance
with attestation standards established by the American Instifute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal_control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit ofthe consolidated financial statements included
exammm% on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessm?_ he accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial _reEortmg Included
obtaining an. understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that™a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and oReratmg effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. Qur audit also incluced performing such other procedures as we, considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The Federal Reserve Bank of New York’s internal control over financial reporting is a process de5|?ned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparafion of
consolidated financial statements” for external purPoses in accordance with the accounting principles
established by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “Board”) as described in Note 3

of the consofidated financial statements and as set forth in the Financial Accounting Manual for Federal

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership,
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.



Reserve Banks (“FAM”). The Federal Reserve Bank of New York’s internal control over financial reporth
includes those policies and procedures that (L) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detai,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to perm|t_?reparat|on
of consolidatéa financial statements in accordance with the FAM, and thaf recelﬁts and expenditures ofthe
Federal Reserve Bank of New York are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Federal Reserve Bank of New Yoik; and (3) provide. reasonable assurance regardmg
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ofthe Federal Reserve Ban
of New York’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future Peno S are Subject to the risk
that controls may becomé madeguate_ because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As described in Note 3 to the consoljdated financial statements, the Federal Reserve Bank of New York has
Prepared these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting principles established by
he Board, as set forth in the FAM, which is a basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

In our opinion, the, consolidated financial statements referred to ahove present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position ofthe Federal Reserve Bank of New York and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015,

and the results of its operations for the yearthen ended, on the basis ,ofaccounu_n? described in Note 3. Also

in our opinion, the Federal Reserve Bank of New Y ork maintained, in all material respects, effective internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, hased on criteria established in Internal Control -

Igtegrated Framework (20133J issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
ommission.

Ll

New York, NY
March 8, 2016



Federal Reserve Bank of New York

Abbreviations

ABS Asset-backed securities

ACH Automated clearinghouse

AlG American International Group Inc.

AIGFP American International Group,.Inc. Financial Products Corp.
ASC Accounting Standards Codjfication

ASU Accounting Standards Update

BEP Beneflt Equalization Retirement Plan

Bureau Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection

CDO Collateralized debt obligation

CDS Credit default swaps

CFE Collateralized financing entity

CIP Committee on Investment Pérformance (related to System Retirement Plan)
CMBS Commercial mortgage-backed securities

FAM Financial Accounting Manualfor Federal Reserve Banks

FASB Financial Accountmg Standards Board

FAST Act |me/I merica’s Surface Transportation Act

FOMC Federal Qpen Market Committee

GAAP Accountmg principles generally accepted in the United States of America
GSE overnments onsored ente rprise

IMF Internatlona onetar

JPMC JPMorgan Chase Co

LLC Limited liability compan

MBS Mortg backed securities

ML ane L

ML 11 Maiden Lane || LLC

ML 111 Maiden Lane [l LLC

MTM Mark-to-market

RMBS Residential mortgagBe -packed securities

OEB Office of Employee Benefits of the Federal Reserve System

SBA SmaIBusmess dministration

SDR Sema rawing_rights

SERP UP plemental etlrement Plan for Select Officers of the Federal Reserve Banks
SOMA Ssy em Open Mar et Account

STRIPS eparate Tra Ing of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities
TALF Term Asset-Backed Securities Loan Facility

TBA To be announced

TBE Term Deposit Facility

T Total return swap
VIE Variable interest entity



Federal Reserve Bank of New York

Consolidated Statements of Condition

As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
(in millions)

2015
ASSETS
Gold certificates 3,709
Bpecial drawing rights certificates 1,818
Boin 72
Roans Note 4) -
Bystem Open Market Account:
Treasury securities, net (ofwhich $11,382 and $6,840 is lent as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively)pl 1,549,211
@lovernment-sponsored enterprise debt securities, net (ofwhich $88 and $388 is lentas of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively) 20,260
@lederal agency and government-sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities, net 1,080,831
@loreign currency denominated investments, net 6,306
@lentral bank liquidity swaps 321
@iccrued interest receivable 15,241
Other assets 9
Bnvestments held by consolidated variable interest entities (ofwhich $1,778 and $1,808
is measured at fair value as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively) Note 6) 1,778
Bank premises and equipment, net Note 7) 479
Beferred asset - remittances to the Treasury -
Other assets 263
Total assets 2,680,298
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Federal Reserve notes outstanding, net 434,194
Bystem Open Market Account:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchasepl 427,663
Other liabilities 305
fiabilities o fconsolidated variable interest entities (ofwhich $21 and $41 is measured
at fair value as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively) Note 6) 57
P eposits:
Depository institutions 1,175,023
freasury, general account 333,447
Other deposits 28,942
finterest payable to depository institutions 162
Bccrued benefit costs Notes 9 and 10) 1,320
feferred credit items 2
Rccrued remittances to the Treasury 1,023
finterdistrict settlement account 265,063
Other liabilities 64
Total liabilities 2,667,265
Capital paid-in 9,734
Surplus (including accumulated other comprehensive loss of $3,674 and $3,938 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively) 3,299
Total capital 13,033
Total liabilities and capital 2,680,298

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements.

2014

4,125
1,818
79

1,593,478

24,544
1,098,074
6,720
491
15,715

18

1,811

475

923

304
2,748,579

418,319

312,919
509

127

1,560,513
223,452
25,392

86

1,495

3

187,283
65
2,730,163

9,208

9,208

18,416
2,748,579



Federal Reserve Bank of New York

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive
Income

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

2015 2014
INTERESTINCOME,
Loans Note 4 - 2
Bystem Open Market Account:
Treasury securities, netpl 38,235 37,733
@overnment-sponsored enterprise debt securities, net 804 941
flederalagency and government-sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities, net 29,571 30,664
foreign currency denominated investments, net 10 25
mvestments held by consolidated variable interest entities Note 6) 4 77
Totalinterest income 68,624 69,442
Interest Expense:
System Open Market Account:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchasedl 149 68
@ther 1 1
Reposits:
Depository institutions 4,609 4,797
ferm Deposit Facility 49 117
Totalinterest expense 4,808 4,983
Netinterestincome 63,816 64,459
Non-Interest Loss:
System Open Market Account:
Federal agency and government-sponsored enterprise mortgage-backed securities gains, nethl 26 48
foreign currency translation losses, net (445) (935)
Pther 10 8
mhvestments held by consolidated variable interest entities gains, net Note 6) 35 37
Bhcome from services 104 95
Bompensation received for service costs provided 2 2
Bleimbursable services to government agencies 169 120
Bther 9 7
Totalnon-interest loss (90) (618)
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 648 630
Pccupancy 70 64
Pquipment 18 18
Pompensation paid for service costs incurred 41 39
Petperiodic pension expense Note 9) 542 352
Pther 193 189
Pssessments:
Board of Governors operating expenses and currency costs 357 343
Pureau ofConsumer Financial Protection 160 183
Total operating expenses 2,029 1,818
Netincome before providing forremittances to the Treasury 61,697 62,023
Earnings remittances to the Treasury:
Interest on Federal Reserve notesil 56,985 59,625
#equired by the Federal Reserve Act, as amended by the FAST Act Note 3p) 10,316 -
Total earnings remittances to the Treasury 67,301 59,625
Net (loss)income after providing forremittances to the Treasury (5,604) 2,398
Change in prior service costs related to benefit plans Note 11) 93 100
Change in actuarial gains (losses)related to benefit plans Note 11) 171 (1,586)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 264 (1,486)
Comprehensive (loss)income (5,340) 912

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements.



Federal Reserve Bank of New York

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
(in millions, except share data)

Surplus
Accumulated
other
filetincome comprehensive
Capital paid-in retained income (loss) Total surplus Total capital
Balance at December 31, 2013
(176,899,697 shares) 8,845 11,297 ( 2,452) 8,845 17,690
Met change in capital stock issued
(7,252,697 shares) 363 363
@omprehensive income:
Net income - 2,398 2,398
®ther comprehensive loss - - (1,486) (1,486) (1,486)
®ividends on capital stock - (549) - (549) (549)
Met change in capital 363 1,849 (1,486) 363 726
Balance at December 31, 2014
(184,152,394 shares) 9,208 13,146 (3,938) 9,208 18,416
Blet change in capital stock issued
(10,531,859 shares) 526 526
Bomprehensive income:
Net loss ) (5,604) - (5,604)
Bther comprehensive income - 264 264 264
Pividends on capital stock - (569) - (569) (569)
Blet change in capital 526 (6,173) 264 (5,909) (5,383)
Balance at December 31, 2015
(194,684,253 shares) 9,734 6,973 (3,674) 3,299 13,033

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements.



Federal Reserve Bank of New York
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(1) STRUCTURE

The Federal Reserve Bank ofNew York (Bank% Is part ofthe Federal Reserve System (System) and is one ofthe 12
Federal Reserve Banks (Reserve Banks) created by Congress under the Fedéral Resgrve Act of 1913 éFederaI
Reserve Act), which established the central bank of the United States. The Reserve Banks are chartered by the
federal %overnment and possess a unique set of governmental, corporate, and central bank characteristics. The Bank
serves the Second Federal Reserve District, which includes the State of New York, the 12 northern counties of New
Jersey, Fairfield County, Connecticut, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

In accordance with the Federal Reserve Act, supervision and control of the Bank is exercised by a board of
directors. The Federal Reserve Act specifies the composition of the board of directors, for each_of the Reserve
Banks. Each hoard is composed of nine members serving three-year terms:_three directors, mcludmﬂ those
designated as chairman and deputy chairman, are appointed by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (Board ofGovern_orsP to reFresent the public, and six directors are elected by member banks. Banks that are
members of the System include all nationally-chartered banks and any state-chartered banks that apply and are
anroved for membership. Member banks aré divided into three classes accorqu_to size. Member banks in each
class elect one dwector_representm? member banks and one representing the public. In any election of directors,
each member bank receives one vo ock it holds.

In addition to the 12 Reserve Banks, the System also consists, in part, ofthe Board of Governors and the Federal
Open Market Committee (FOMC). The Board of Governors, an independent federal agency, is charged by the
Federal Reserve Act with a number of specific duties, including general supervision over the Reserve Banks. The
FOMC is composed of members ofthe Board of Governors, the president ofthe Bank, and, on a rotating basis, four
other Reserve Bank presidents.

(2) OPERATIONS AND SERVICES

The Reserve Banks perform a variety of services and operations. These functigns include participating in
formulating and conductm/g monetary policy; participating in the payment system, including transfers of funds
automated clearln?house (ACH) operations, and check collection; distributing Coin and currency: performing fiscal
agency functions Tor the U.S. ePartment ofthe Treasury (Treasury), certain federal aqen_mes, and other entities;
serving as the federal government’s bank: providing short-term loans to depository institutions; providing loans to
participants in programs or facilities with broad-based eligibility in unusual and exigent circumstances; serving
consumers and' communities by Prowd!ng educational materials and information regarding_ financial consumer
Brotectlon_ rights and Jaws and Information on co_mmunléy development programs and activities; and supervising
ank holding companies, state member banks, savings and loan holdm%cqmpames, U.S. offices of foreign banking
organizations, and designated financial market utilities pursuant to authority delegated by the Board of Governors.
Certain services are provided to foreign and international monetary authorities, primarily by the Bank.

e, regardless ofthe number of shares 0f Reserve Bank s

The FOMC, in conducting monetary ﬂoll_cy,_establlshe_s policy re%ardm domestic open market operations
oversees these operations, and issues authorizations and directives to the Bank to execute transactions. The FOMC
authorizes and directs the Bank to conduct operations in domestic markets, including the direct purchase and sale of
Treasury securities, government-sponsored enterprise (GSE). debt securities, and federal agency and GSE
mortgade-backed securities (MBS); the purchase ofthese securities under agreements to resell; and'the sale ofthese
securities under a?reements to repurchase. The Bank holds the resulting Securities and a?reements in a portfolio
known, as the System Open Market Account SS_OMA). The Bank is authorized and directed to lend the Treasury
securities and GSE debt securities that are held in the SOMA.



Federal Reserve Bank of New York
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

To be prepared to counter disorderly conditions in forelgn exchange markets or to meet other needs specified by the
FOMC to carry out the System’s céntral bank responsibilities, the FOMC has authorized and directed the Bank to
execute, spot and forward foreign exchange transactions in_ 14 foreign currencies, to hold balances in those
currencies, and to invest such fo_re|%n currency holdings, while maintaining adequate liquidity. The Bank holds
these securities and obligations in the SOMA. The FOMC has also authorized the Bank to maintain reciprocal
currency arrangements with the Bank of Canada and the Bank of Mexico in the maximum amounts of _?_2 billion and
$3 billion, respectively, and to warehouse foreign currencies for the Treasury and the Exchange Stabilization Fund
in the maximum amount of $5 billion.

Because of the global character of bank funding markets, the System has at times coordinated with other central
banks to provide liquidity. The FOMC authorized and directed the Bank to establish U.S. dollar liquidity and
reciprocal foreign currency liquidity swap lines with the Bank of Canada, the Bank of England, the Eurogean
Central Bank, the Bank of Japan, and the Swiss National Bank. The Bank holds amounts outStanding under these
swap lines in the SOMA. These swap lines, which were originally established as temporary arrangements, were
converted to standing arrangements on October 31, 2013, and'will Temain in place until further notice.

Although the Reserve Banks are separate I_e[%al entities, they collaborate on the delivery of certain services to
achieve greater efficiency and effectiveness. This collaboration takes the form of centralize o?eratmns and product
or function offices that have responsibility for the delivery of certain services on behalf of the Reserve Banks,
Various operational and management models are_used and are supported by service agreements between the
Reserve Banks. In some cases, Costs incurred by a Reserve Bank for services provided to other Reserve Banks are
not shared; in other cases, the Reserve Banks are reimbursed for costs incurred in providing services to other
Reserve Banks. Major services provided by the Bank on behalf of the System for which the costs were not
reimbursed b_}/ the other Reserve Banks include the management of SOMA, the Wholesale Product Office, the
System Credit Risk Technology Support function, the Valuation Support team, centralized busingss administration
functions for wholesale payments services, and three national information technology operations dealing with
Incident responses, remote access, and enterprise search.

(3) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting ‘ormmBIes for entities with the unique powers and responsipilities of the nation’s central bank have, not
been formulated, by accounting standard-setting bodies. The Board of Governors has deveIoPed specialized
accounting principles and practices that it consicers to be appropriate for the nature and function ofa central bank.
These accounting principles and practices are documented in the Financial Accounting Manual for Federal Reserve
Banks (FAM), which is issued by the Board of Governors. The Reserve Banks are required to adopt and apply
accou_ntmag policies and practices that are_consistent with the FAM. The consolidated financial statements and
associated disclosures have been prepared in accordance with the FAM.

Limited differences, exist between the accounting principles and practices in the FAM and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), due to the unique nature of the Bank’s powers and
responsibilities as_part of the nation’s central bank and given the System’s unique responsibility to conduct
monetary policy. The primary differences are the presentation of all SQMA securities holdings at amortized cost,
adjustedfor crédit impairment, if any, the recorde ofall SOMA securities on a settlement-date basis, and the use
of straight-line amortization for Treasury securifies, GSE debt securities, and fore_|qn currency denominated
investments. Amortized cost, rather than the fair value presentation, more appropriately reflects the financial
position associated with the Bank’s securities holdings given the S){stem’s unique responsibility toconduct
monetary policy. Although the application of fair value measurements to the securities holdings may résult in values



Federal Reserve Bank of New York
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

substantially greater or less than their carrying values, these unrealized changes in value have no direct effect on the
quantity of reserves available to the banking system or on the ability of the Reserve Banks, as the central bank, to
meet their financial obligations and responsibilities. Both the domestic and foreign components of the SOMA
portfolio may involve transactions that result in gains or losses when holdings are sold before maturity. Decisions
regi_ardmg_ securities and foreign currency transactions, including their purchase and sale, are motivated by monetary
policy objectives rather than profit. Accordingly, fair values, earnm%s, and gains or losses resulting from the sale of
such “securities and currencies are incidental to open market operdtions and do not motivate decisions related to
Pohcy or open market activities, Accounting for these securities on a, settlement-date basis, rather than the
rade-date hasis required by GAAP, better reflects the timing ofthe transaction’s effect on the quantity of reserves in
the banking system. The cost hases of Treasury securitiés, GSE debt securities, and foreign government debt
instruments are adjusted for amortization of premiums or accretion of discounts on a straight-line basis, rather than
using the interest method required by GAAP.

In addition, the Bank does not Present a Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as required by GAAP because the
liquidity and cash position of the Bank are not a primary concern given the Reserve Bank’s unique powers and
responsibilities as a central bank. Other information regarding the” Bank’s activities is provided in, or may he
derived from, the Consolidated Statements of Condition, Income and Comprehensive Income, and Changes in
Capital, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. Other than those described anove,
there are no significant differences between the policies outlined in the FAM and GAAP.

Preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the FAM, reqlu|_res management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the reForted amounts’ of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the_date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of income and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant accounts and accounting policies are explained below.

a. Consoljdation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and results of operations ofthe Bank as well as several
variable interest entities (VIES), which include Maiden Lane LLC (ML), Maiden Lane I LLC (ML II), Maiden
Lane 111 LLC (ML I11), and TALF LLC. The consolidation ofthe VIEs was assessed in accordance with Financial
Accoun_tm? Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 810 (ASC 810),
Consolidation, which requires a VIE to be consolidated by its controlling financial interest holder. Intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. See Note 6 for additional information on the VIES.
The consolidated financial statements of the Bank also include accounts and results of oReratmns of Maiden and
Nassau LLC, a Delaware limited Ilablllt{compa_ng_ (LLC) wholly-owned by the Bank, which was formed to own
and operate the Bank-owned 33 Maiden Lane building.

The Bank consolidates a VIE ifthe Bank has a controllmg financial interest, which is defined as the power to direct
the squlcant economic activities ofthe entity and the obligation to absorh losses or the nght to receive benefits of
the entity that could potentially be sqmﬁcant 0 the VIE. To determine whether it is the controlling financial interest
holder ofa VIE, the Bank evaluates the VIE’s design, capital structure, and relationships with the variable interest
holders. The Bank reconsiders, whether it has a controlling financial interest in a VIE, as required by ASC 810, at
each reporting date or ifthere is an event that requires consiceration.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (Dodd-Frank Actg established the
Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection (Bureau) as an independent bureau within the System that has

10



Federal Reserve Bank of New York
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

supervisory authority over some institutions previously supervised bY the Reserve Banks in connection with those
institutions’ compliance with consumer protection statutes. Section 1017 of the Dodd-Frank Act provides that the
financial statements of the Bureau are not to be consolidated with those of the Board of Governors or the System.
The Board of Governors funds the Bureau throu?h assessments on the Reserve Banks as required Dy the
Dodd-Frank Act. The Reserve Banks reviewed the faw and evaluated the design of and their relationship fo the
Bureau and determined that it should not be consolidated in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements.

b. Gold and Special Drawing Rights Certificates B .

The Secretar}(/ ofthe Treasury's athorized to issue gold certificates to the Reserve Banks. Upon authorization, the
Reserve Banks acquire ?_old Certificates by crediting equivalent amounts in dollars to the account established for the
Treasury. The gold certificates held b%/ he Reserve Banks are required to be backed by the gold owned by the
Treasury. The Treasury may reacquire the gold certificates at any time, and the Reserve Banks must deliver thém to
the Treasury. At such time, the Treasury’s account is char?ed, and the Reserve Banks’ gold certificate accounts are
reduced. The value of gold for purﬁoses of backing the gold certificates is set by law at%zlz 209 Per fine troy ounce.
Gold certificates are récorded by the Banks at original Cost. The Board of Governors allocates the gold certificates
among the Reserve Banks once a year based on gach Reserve Bank’s average Federal Reserve ndtes outstanding
during the preceding 12 months.

Special drawing rights (SDR) are issued by the International Monetary Fund (IMF) to its members in proportion to
each member’s quota in the IMF at the time, of issuance. SDRS serve as a supplement to international monetar
reserves and may be transferred from one national monetary authority to another. Under the law providing for U.S.

articipation in the SDR system, the SecretarF ofthe Treasury is authorized to issue SDR certificates to the Reserve

anks. When SDR certificates are issued to the Reserve Banks, equivalent amounts in U.S. dollars are credited to
the account established for the Treasury and the Reserve Banks’ SDR.certificate accounts are increased. The
Reserve Banks are required to purchasé SDR certificates, at the direction of the Treasury, for the purpose of
financing SDR acquisitions or for flnancmﬂ exchange-stabilization operations. At the time SDR certificate
transactions occur, the Board of Governors allocates the SDR certificates among the Reserve Banks based upon
each Reserve Bank’s Federal Reserve notes outstanding at the end of the preceding calendar year. SDR certificates
are recorded hy the Banks at original cost.

¢. Coin

The amount reported as coin in the Consolidated Statements of Condition represents the face value of all United
_Statt_etstcom héeld by the Bank. The Bank buys coin at face value from the U.S. Mint in order to fill depository
Institution orders.

dloans . o . . .
Loans to depository institutions are reported at their outstanding principal balances and interest income is
recognized on an accrual basis.

The interest income on Term Asset-Backed Securities Loan Facility (TALF) loans was reco_gnized based on the
contracted rate and is reported as a component of “Interest Income: Loans™ in the Consolidated Statements of
Income and Comprehensive Income.

L oans are impaired when current information and events indicate that it is probable that the Bank will not receive
the principal and interest that are due in accordance with the contractual terms ofthe Joan agreement. Impaired loans
are evaluated to determine whether an allowance for loan loss is required. The Bank has developed procedures for
assessing the adequacy of any allowance for loan losses using all available information to identify incurred losses.
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This assessment includes _momtormg information obtained from banking supervisors, borrowers, and other sources
to assess the credit conditign,ofthe Dorrowers and, as appropriate, evaluatmﬁ collateral values. Generally, the Bank
would discontinue recognizing interest income on impaired loans until the borrower’s rePayment performance
demonstrates principal and interest would be received in accordance with the terms of the lodn agreement. If the
Bank discontinues recording interest on an impaired loan, cash payments are first applied to Prmmpal until the loan
balance is reduced to zero; subsequent payments are applied” as recoveries of amounts previously deemed
uncollectible, if any, and then as interest income.

eS. Sec_g_nuEs Pcllj_rchased Under Agreements to Resell, Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase, and
ecurities Lendin

The Bank ma engage in P]urchases of Securities with primary dealers under agreements to resell (repurchase
transactions). These Tepurchase fransactions are typically settléd through a tri-party arrangement. In‘the United
States, there are two commercial custodial banks that provide these. services. In a tri-party arrangement, a
commercial custodial bank manages the collateral clearing, settlement, pricing, and loledglng and provides cash and
securities custodial services for and on behalf ofthe Bank'and counterpart¥. he collateral pledged must exceed the
principal amount of the transaction by a margin determined by the Bank tor each class and maturity of acceptable
collateral. Collateral designated by ‘the Bank as acceptablé under repurchase transactions primarily includes
Treasury securities, (including Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities, Separate Trading of Registered Interest and
Principdl of Securities (STRIPS) Treasury securities, and Treasury Floating Rate Notes); direct obligations of
several federal and GSE-related agencies, includin Federal National Mortgatge Association, Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation, and Federal Home Loan Banks; and _pass-through ederal agency and GSE MBS. The
repurchase transactions are accounted for as financing transactions with the associated interest income recognized
overthe life ofthe transaction. These transactions are reported at their contractual amounts as “System Open Market
Account; Securities purchased under a%reements to resell” and the related accrued interest recgivable is reported as
% cog] jonent of “System Open Market Account; Accrued interest receivable” in the Consolidated Statements of

ondition.

The Bank may engage, in sales of securities under agreements fo repurchase with primary dealers and with a et of
expanded counterparties that includes banks, savings associations, GSES, and domestic money market funds
(Primary dealer and expanded counterparties reverse repurchase agreements). These revérse repurchase
transactions are designed to have a margin of zero and are settled through a tri-party arrangement, similar to
_rePurchase transactions. Reverse repurchase, transactions may also be”executed with foreuﬂn official and
international account holders as part of a service offering. Reverse repurchase agreements are collateralized by a
Pledge of an amount ofTreasur¥ securities, GSE debt securities, or federal agency and GSE MBS that are held in
he SOMA. Reverse repurchase transactions are accounted for as financing transactions, and the associated interest
expense is recognized overthe life ofthe transaction. These transactions are reported at their contractual amounts as
System Open Market Account: Securities sold under agreements to repurchase” and the related accrued interest
%etlytable |ts re 8rtegl_t_as a component of “System Open Market Account: Other liabilities” in the Consolidated
atements of Condition.

Treasu[}/ securities and GSE debt securities held in the SOMA may be lent to primary dealers, typically overm?ht,
to facilitate the effective functioning ofthe domestic securities markets. The amortized cost basis of securities Tent
continues to be reported as “System Open Market Account: Treasury securities, net” and “System Open Market
Account: Government-spansored enterprise debt securities, net,” as appropriate, inthe Consolidated Statements of
Condition. Securities Iendmgbtransactmns are fully collateralized by Treasury securities based on the fair values of
the securities lent increased by a margin determined by the Bank. The Bank charges the primary dealer a fee for
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borrowing_securities, and these fees are reported as a component of “Non-interest loss: System Open Market
Account: Other” inthe Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

Activity related to securities purchased under aﬂ]reements to resell, securities sold under agreements to repurchase
and securities lending Is allocated to each of the Reserve Banks on a percentage basis terived from an annual
settlement of the interdistrict settlement account that occurs in the second quarterof each year.

f. Treasury Securities, Government-Sponsored Enterprise . Debt Securities, Federal Agency and
Fove{nmetnt-Sponsored Enterprise Mortgage-Backed Securities, and Foreign Currency Denominated
nvestments

Interest income_on Treasury securities, GSE debt securities, and foreign currency denominated investments
included in the SOMA is accrued using the strajght-line method. Interest income on federal agency and GSE MBS
is accrued using the interest method and includés amortization of premiums, accretion of discounts, and gains or
losses associated with prmmPaI paydowns. Premiums and discounts related to federal agency and GSE MBS are
amortized or accreted over the tefm of the security to stated maturity, and the amortization of Fremmms and
accretion of discounts are accelerated when principal payments are received. Gains and losses resulting from sales
of securities are determined by specific issue based on dverage cost. Treasury securities, GSE debt seCurities, and
federal agency and GSE MBS are reported net of premiums and discounts in_the Consolidated Statements of
Condition and interest income on those securities is reported net of the amortization of premiums and accretion of
discounts inthe Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

In addition to outright purchases of federal agency and GSE MBS that are held in the SOMA, the Bank enters into
dollar roll transactions (dollar rolls), which” primarily involve an_initial transaction to purchase or sell “to be
announced” (TBA) MBS for delivery in the current month combined with a simultaneous agreement to sell or
purchase TBA M Sona_slpemﬂed Uture date. During the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank
executed dollar rolls to facilitate settlement of outstanding purchases of federal agency and GSE MBS. The Bank
accounts for dollar rolls as individual purchases and, sales, on a settlement-date basis. Accountm% for these
transactions as purchases and sales, rather than as financing transactions, is appropriate because the purchase or sale
component of the MBS TBA dollar roll is [0a|red off or a35|Pned prior to Settlement and, as a result, there is no
transfer and return of securities, The Bank also conducts small' value exercises from time to time for the purpose. of
testing operational readiness. Small-value exercises may include sales of federal agency and GSE MBS. Net gains
losses) resulting from MBS transactions are reported as a component of “Non-interest loss:, System Open Market

ccount: Federal agency and government-sponsored enterprise mortgage-hacked securities gains, net” in the
Consolidated Statements’of Income and Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency denominated investments, which can include foreign currency deposits, securities purchased
underagreements to resell, and %overnment debt instruments, are revalled daily af current foreign currency market
exchange rates in orderto reportthese assets in U.S. dollars. Forelgn currency translation gains and losses that result
from the daﬂk/ revaluation of foreign currency denominated investments are’reported as “Non-interest loss: System
Qpen Market Account: Foreign currency translation losses, net” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income.

Because the Bank enters into commitments to buy Treasury securities, federal agency and GSE MBS, and forei%n

Eovernment debt instruments and records the related secufities on a settlement-date hasis in accordance with the
AM, the related outstanding commitments are not reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Condition.
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Activity related to Treasury securities, GSE debt securities, and federal agency and GSE MBS, including the

?remlums, discounts, and realized gains and_losses, is allocated to each Reserve Bank on a percentage basis defived
rom an annual settlement of the Interdistrict settlement account that occurs in the second quarter of each year,

Activity related to foreign currency denominated investments, including the premiums, discounts, and realized and

unrealized gains and losses, is allocated in the first quarter of each yearto each Reserve Bank based on the ratio of

%ach Rte)sergf Bank’s capital and surplus to the Reserve Banks’ aggregate capital and surplus at the preceding
ecember 3L

The Bank is authorized to hold foreign currency working balances and execute foreign exchange contracts to
facilitate international payments and Currency transactions it makes on behalf of foreign central bank and U.S.
official institytion customiers. These foreign currency working balances and contracts aré not related to the Bank's
monetary Follcy operations. Foreign curréncy working balances are reported as a component of “Other assets” in
the Consolidatéd Statements of Condition and the related foreign currency translation gains and losses that result
from the da|I?/ revaluation of the foreign currency working balances and contracts are_ reported as a component of
“Non-interest loss: Other” inthe Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

% Central Bank Liquidity Swaps _
entral bank liquidity swaps, which are transacted between the Bank and a foreign central bank, can be structured as
either U.S. dollar or foreign currency liquidity swap arrangements.

Central bank liquidity swaps activity mcludm? the related income and expense, is allocated in the first quarter of
each yearto each Reserve Bank based on the rafio of each Reserve Bank’s capital and surplus to the Reserve Banks’
aggregiate capital and surplus at the preceding December 31, The foreign currency amounts associated with these
céntral bank liquidity swap arrangements are Tevalued daily at current foreign currency market exchange rates.

U.S. dollar liquidity swaps

Atthe initiation of each U.S. dollar liquidity swap transaction, the foreign central bank transfers a specified amount
of its currency to a restricted account for the Bank in exchange for U.S. dollars at the prevailing market exchange
rate. Concurrent with this transaction, the Bank and the forgign central bank agree to a second transaction that
obligates the foreign central bank to return the U.S. dollars and the Bank to feturn the fore|9n currency on a
specified future date atthe same exchange rate as the initial transaction. The Bank’s allocated porfion ofthe or_eqn
currency amounts that the Bank acquires are reported as “System Open Market Account: Central bank liquidity
swaps™ In the Consolidated Statements of Condition. Because the swap transaction will be unwound at the same
U.S. dollar amount and exchange rate that were used in the initial transaction, the recorded value of the foreign
currency amounts is not affected by changes in the market exchange rate.

The fore|?n central hank comPensates the Bank based on the amount, outstandmg and, the rate under the swap
agreement. The Bank’s allocated portion of the amount of compensation receive durmq_the_ term of the swap
transaction is reported as “Interest income: System Open Market Account: Central bank Tiquidity swaps™ in the
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency liquidity swaps

Foreign currency liquidity swap transactions involve the transfer by the Bank at the prevailing market exchange
rate, 0f 4 specified amount of U.S. dollars to an account for the forign central bank in exchange for its currency.
The foreign currency amounts that the Bank receives are recorded as a liability.
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h. Consolidated VIES - Investments and Liabilities, _ _ y

The investments held by consolidated VIES consist primarily of short-term investments with maturities of greater
than three months and |ess than one year, cash and cash equivalents, and swap contracts. Swap contracts consist of
credit default swaps (CDS). Investments are reported as “Investments held by consolidated variable interest
entities” in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. Changes in fair value of'the_investments are recorded in
“Non-interest income Qoss?: Investments held b%/ consolidated variable interest entities gains (losses), net” in the
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

Investments in debt securities are accounted for in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 320, Investments - Debt and
Eg\un Securities, and the VIES elected the fair value option for all eligible assets and liabilities.in accordance with
FASB ASC To?m 825 (ASC 825), Financial Instruments. Other financial instruments, including swap contracts,
are recorded at fair value in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 815 (ASC 815), Derivatives and Hedging.

The liabilities of consolidated VIES consist primarily of swap contracts, cash collateral on sw%p contracts, and
accruals for operating expenses. Swap contracts are recorded at fair value in accordance with ASC 815, Liabilities
are reported as “Liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities” in the Consolidated Statements of Condifion.
Changes in fair value ofthe liabilities are recorded in “Non-interest loss: Investments held by consolidated variable
interest entities gains (losses), net” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

I. Bank Premises, Equipment, and Software . o

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 2 to 50 years, Major alterations,
renovations, and improvements are capjtalized at cost as additions fo the asset accounts and are depreciated over the
remaining useful lite of the asset or, if appropriate, over the unique useful life of the alteration, renovation, or
improverment. Maintenance, repairs, and minor replacements are charged to operating expense in the year incurred.
Reserve Banks may transfer assets to other Reserve Banks or may lease property of other Reserve Banks.

Costs incurred to acquire software are capitalized based on the purchase price. Costs incurred during the application
development stage to develop internal-use software are capitalized based on the cost of direct services and materials
associated with ,e3|gn|n%, coding, mstallmgi, and testing the software. Capitalized software cogts are amortized on a
straight-ling basis over the estimated useful lives of the software applications, which generally range from two to
five years. I\élamtenance costs and minor replacements related to software are charged'to operating expense in the
year incurred,

CaéJitaIize_d assets, including software, buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, and equipment, are impaired
and an adjustment is recorded when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of assets
Or asset groups is not recoverable and significantly exceeds the assets’ fair value.

. Interdistrict Settlement Account

ach Reserve Bank aﬂgregates the payments due to or from other Reserve Banks.. These payments result from
transactions between the Reserve Banks and transactions that involve depository institution accounts held by other
Reserve Banks, such as Fedwire funds and securities transfers and check and ACH transactions. The cumulafive net
amount due to or from the other Reserve Banks is reflected in the “Interdistrict settlement account” in the
Consolidated Statements of Condition.

An annual settlement ofthe interdistrict settlement account occurs inthe second quarter of each year. As a result of
the annual settlement, the balance in each Bank’s interdistrict settlement account is adjusted by an amount equal to
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the average balance in the account during the previous twelve-month period ended March 31. An equal and
offsetting adjustment is made to each Bank's allocated portion of SOMA assets and liabilities.

k. Federal Reserve Notes _ _ o
Federal Reserve notes are the circulating currency ofthe United States, These notes, which are identified as issued
to a specific Reserve Bank, must be fully collateralized. All of the Bank’s assets are eligible to be pledged as
collateral. The collateral value is equal to the book value ofthe collateral tendered with the xception of securities
for which the collateral value is equal to the par value of the securities tendered. The par value of securities sold
under agreements to repurchase is deducted from the eligible collateral value.

The Board of Governors may, at any time, call upon a Reserve Bank for additional security to adequately
collateralize outstanding Federal Reserve notes. To satisfy the obligation to provide sufficient collateral for
outstanding Federal Reserve notes, the Reserve Banks havé entered into an agreement that provides for certain
assets of the Reserve Banks to be jointly pledged as collateral for the Federal Reserve notes issued to all Reserve
Banks. In the event that this collateral i$ insufficient, the Federal Reserve Act provides that Federal Reserve notes
become a first and paramount lien on all the assets of the Reserve Banks. Finally, Federal Reserve notes are
obligations ofthe United States government.

“Federal Reserve notes outstanding, net” inthe Consolidated Statements of Condition represents the Bank’s Federal
Reserve notes outstanding, reducd by the Bank’s currency holdings of $64,415 million and $56,971 million at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, all Federal Reserve notes outstandm?, reduced by the Reserve Bank’s currency
holdings, were fully collateralized. At December 31, 2015, all gold certificates, all special drawing rights
certificates, and $1,363 billion of domestic securities held in the SOMA were pledged as collateral. At Déceniber
31, 2015, no investments denominated in foreign currencies were pledged as collateral.

|. Deposits

Depository Institutions

DeP_osLtory institutions’ deposits represent the reserve and service-related balances in the accounts that depository
institutions hold at the Bank. Required reserve balances are those that a depository institution must hold to satisfy ifs
reserve requirement. Reserve requirements are the amount of funds that a depository institution must hold in reserve
against specified deposit liabilities. Excess reserves are those held by the depository institutions in excess of their
réquired reserve balances. The interest rates paid on required reserve balances and éxcess balances are determined
by the Board of Governors, based on an FOMC-gstablished target range for the federal funds rate. Interest expense
on dep03|tor¥ institutions’ deposits is accrugd daily at the appropriate rate. Interest pa¥able IS, reported as a

component ot “Interest payable to depository institutions” in the Consolidated Statements ot Condition.

The Term Deposit Facility (TDFLconsis_ts of deposits with specific maturities held by eligible institutions at the
Reserve Banks. The Reserve Banks pay interest on these, deposits at interest rates detérmined by auction. Interest
expense on depository institutions’ deposits is accrued daily at the appropriate rate. Interest Payabl_e_ IS re]ported 852
component of “Interest payable to deﬁosnor institutions” in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. There were
no deposits held by the Bank under the TDF at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

Treasury
The Treasury general account is the primary operational account ofthe Treasury and is held at the Bank.
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Other

Other deposits include the Bank’s allocated portion of foreign central bank and foreign government deposits held at
the Bank and those in which the Bank has an undivided interest. Other deposits also include cash collateral, deposits
of designated financial market utilities and, GSE deposits held by the Bank.

m. Deferred Credit ltems o _ _ _ oo
Deferred credit items represents the counte[Part_ liability to items in process of collection. The amounts in this
account arise from deferring credit for deposited items until the amounts are collected.

n. Capital Paid-in

The Federal Reserve Act requires that each member bank subscribe to the capital stock ofthe Reserve Bank in an
amount equal to 6 percent of the capital and surplus of the member bank. These shares are nonvoting, with a par
value of $100, and may not be transferred or hypothecated. As a member bank’s capital and surplug changes, its
holdings of Reserve Bank stock must be adjusted. Currently, only one-half of the subscription is paid in, and the
rergam_(ti)eEJI |B sutbject to call. A member bank'is liable for Reserve Bank liabilities up to twice the par value of stock
subscribed by it.

By law, each Reserve Bank is required fo pay each member bank an annual dividend of 6 percent on the paid-in
capital stock. This cumulative dividend is paid semiannually.

The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act), which was enacted on December 4, 2015, amended
section 7 of the Federal Reserve Act related to Reserve Bank surﬁlus and the payment of dividends to member
banks. The FAST Act changed the dividend rate for member banks with more than $10 billion of consolidated
assets, effective January 1, 2016, to the smaller of 6 Percent or the rate equal to the h|%\h leld of the 10-year
Treasury note auctioned at the last auction held prior to the payment ofthe dividend, The FAST Act did not change
the 6 percent dividend rate for member banks with $10 billion or less oftotal consolidated assets. The provisions of
the FAST Act related to dividend payments did not affect the amounts reported by the Bank for the year ended
December 31, 2015, but are expected to reduce the amount of dividend payments made to member banks in future
years,

0. Surplus

Beforepthe enactment of the FAST Act, the Board of Governors required the Reserve Banks to maintain a surplus
e(iual to the amount ofcaBnaI paid-in. On a daily basis, surplus was adjusted to equate the balance to capital paig-in.
Effective December 4, 2015, the FAST Act limits a gre?ate Reserve Bank surplus to $10 billion. Reserve Bank
surplus is allocated amon%the Reserve Banks based on the ratio of each Bank’s capital paid-in to total Reserve
Bank capital paid-in as of December 31 of each year.

Accumulated other comprehensive income is reported as a component of “Surplus” in the Consolidated Statements
of Condition and the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital. Additional information regarding the
classifications of accumulated other comprehensive income is provided in Notes 9, 10, and 11.

E' Earnings Remittances to the TreasurY _

efore thé enactment of the FAST Act, the Board of Governors required the Reserve Banks to transfer excess
earnings to the Treasury as interest on Federal Reserve notes after providing for the costs of operations, payment of
dividends, and reservation of an amount necessary to equate surplus with capital paic-in. The Federal Resérve Act,
as amended by the FAST Act effective December4, 2015, now requires that anﬁ_amounts ofthe surplus funds of the
Reserve Banks that exceed, or would exceed, the aggregate limitation of $10 biflion shall be transferred to the Board
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of Governors for transfer to the Treasury. The Bank remits excess eamings to the Treasury after providing for the
cost of operations, Payment of dividends, and reservation of an amount necessary to maintain surplus at thé Bank’s
allocated portion ofthe $10 billion ag%re%?te surplus limitation. Remittances to the Treasury are made on a weekly
basis. The amount of the remittances o the Treasury that were required under the Board of Governor’s policy is
reported as “Earnings remittances to the Treasury: Interest on Federal Reserve notes” in the Consolidated
Statements of Incomé and Comprehensive Income. The amount ofthe remittances to the Treasury that are required
by the FAST Act is reported as “Earnings. remittances to the Treasury: Required by the Federal Resgrve Act, as
amended by the FAST Act” in the Consolidated Statements of Incomie and ComErehenswe Income, The amount
due to the” Treasury is reported as “Accrued. remittances to the_ Treasury” in the Consolidated Statements of
Condition. See Note 13 for additional information on earnings remittances to the Treasury.

Under the previous Board of Governor’s policy, if earnings during the year were not sufficient to provide for the
costs of operations, payment of dividends, and equating Surplus and capital paid-in, remittances to the Treasury
were suspended, and under the FAST Act, if earnings during the year are not sufficient to provide for the costs of
o;ieratlo_ns, payment of dividends, and maintaining surplus at'an amount equal to the Bank’sallocated portion ofthe
$10 billion aggregate surplus limitation, remittances to the Treasury are suspended. A deferred asset is recorded that
represents the” amount of net earnings a Reserve Bank will need to realize before remittances to the Treasury
resume. This deferred asset is periodically reviewed for impairment. The deferred asset is reported as “Deferred
asset - ren%nta_n%eg to the Treasury” in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. As of December 31, 2015, no
Impairment existed.

hen directed by the Secretary ofthe Tredsury, the Bank is reﬂmred b1ythe Federal Reserve Act to serve as fiscal
agent and depositary ofthe United States Government. By statute, the Treasury has appropriations to pay for these
services. During the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank was reimbursed for substantially all
services provided to the Treasury as its fiscal agent.

\% Income and Costs Related to Treasury Services
g

r. Income from Services, Compensation Received for Service Costs Provided, and Compensation Paid for
Service Costs Incurred o _ N _ N
The Bank has overall responsibility for managing the Reserve Banks’ provision of Fedwire funds and securities
services and, as a result, reports”total Systém revenue for these services as “Income from services” in its
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. The Bank compensates the applicable Reserve
Banks for the costs incurred to provide these services and reports the resultm_g compensation paid as “Operatmg
expenses: Compensation paid for service costs incurred” in its Consolidated Statements of Income an
Comprehensive Income.

The Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta has overall responsibility for managing the Reserve Banks’ Prowsmn_ of check
and ACH services to degosnory institutions, and the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago has qveral] responsibility for
managing the Reserve Banks’ provision of electronic access services to deRosnory Institutions. The Reserve Bank
that has overall responsibility for managing these services recogrmzes the related total System revenue in its
Congolidated Statements of Income and Tomprehensive Income. The Bank is compensated for costs incurred to
provide these services by the Reserve Banks responsible for managing these services and reports this compensation
as “Non-interest oss; Compensation received for service costs provided” in its Consolidated Statements of Income
and Comprehensive Income.
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s. Assessments

The Board of Governors assesses the Reserve Banks to fund its operations and the operations ofthe Bureau. These
assessments are allocated to each Reserve Bank based on each Reserve Bank’s capital and surplus balances. The
Board of Governors also assesses each Reserve Bank for expenses related to producing, issuing, and retiring Federal
Reserve notes based on each Reserve Bank’s share ofthe number of notes comprising the SyStem’s net liability for
Federal Reserve notes on December 31 ofthe prior year,

The Dodd-Frank Act requires that, after the transfer of its responsibilities to the Bureau on July 21, 2011, the Board
of Governors fund the Bureau in an amount not to exceed a fixed percent_a%e ofthe total operating exPenses ofthe
System as reported in the Board of Governor’s 2009 annual report, which totaled $4.98 hillion.” After 2013, the
amount will be adjusted annually in accordance with the provisions ofthe Dodd-Frank Act. The percentage oftotal
operating expenses of the Sgstem for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was 12.42 percent (§618.7
million) and 12.22 percent (8608.4 million), respectively. The Bank’s assessment for Bureau funding is reported as
Assessments: Bureau of Consumer Financial Protéction” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income.

t. Fair Value

Investments and liabilities of the one remaining consolidated \/IE and assets ofthe Retirement Plan for Employees
of the System are measured at fair value in"accordance with FASB ASC Topic 820 (ASC 820), Fair Value
Measurement. ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. ASC 820 establishes a
three-level fair value h|erarch%/ that distinguishes between assumptions developed using market data obtained from
independent sources (observable inputs) and the Bank’s assumptions develope usmgthe best information available
unobservable inputs). The three levels established by ASC 82

o Level 1- Valuation is based on quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets.

In the circumstances are described as follows:

o Level 2- Valuation.is based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for
which all significant assumptions are observable in the market.

o Level 3- Valuation is based on model-based, techniques that use significant mguts and assumptions not
observable in the market. These unobsgrvable inputs and assumptions reflectthe Bank’s estimates of inputs
and assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets and liabilities. Valuation
techniques Include the use of option pricing models, discounted cash flow models, and similar techniques.

The inputs or methodolo?y used for valuing assets and liabilities are not necessarily an indication of the risk
associated with those assets and liabilities.

U, Taxes

The Reserve Banks are exempt from federal, state, and local taxes, except for taxes on real property. The Bank’s
real property taxes were $16 million and $15 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
and are reported as a component of “Operating expenses: Occupancy” in the Consolidated Statements of Income
and Comprehensive Income.

v, Restructuring Charges

The Reserve Banks recognize restruct_uring% charPes for exit or_disposal costs incurred as part of the closure of
business activities in a particular location, the refocation of business activities from one location to another, or a
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fundamental reorganization that affects the nature of operations. Restructuring charges may include costs associated
with employee separations, contract terminations, and asset impairments. EXpenseS are récognized in the period in
which the Bank commits to a formalized restructuring plan or executes the specific actions contemplated in the plan
and all criteria for financial statement recognition have been met,

In 2014, the Treasury announced plans to consolidate the provision of substantially all fiscal agent services for the
U.S. TreasuFr{y at the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland, the Federal Reserve Barik of Kansas City, the Bank, and
the Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis. The implementation plan associated with this consolidation 1 expected to be

completed in 2018.
The Bank had no significant restructuring activities in 2015 and 2014,

w. Recently Issued A_ccountmg Standards , o

In April 2014, FASB issued Actounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-08, Presentation ofFinancial Statements
(TOBI'C 205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures
of Disposals of Components of an Entity. This update changes thé requirements for reporting discontinued
operations, which may include a component of an entity or a group of components of an entity, or a business or
nonprofit activity. This update is effective for the Bank tor the year ended December 31, 2015, and did not have a
material effect on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenuefrom Contracts with Customers_(To?|c_606)._ This update
Was Issued to create common revenue reco|gn|t|on uidance for U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting
Standards. The guidance is apt)llcabl_e to all'contracts for the transfer of goods or services regardless of industry or
type oftransaction. This update requires recognition of revenue in a manner that reflects the consideration that the
entity exgects to_receive in return for the transfer of goods or services to customers, In August 2015, the FASB
issued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Ctstomers (Topic 606): Deferral ofthe Effective Date, which
delayed the required effective date ofthis accounting by one gear. his revenue recognition accounting guidance is
effective_for the Bank for the year endm? December-31, 2019, although the Bank may elect to adopt ?mdance
etarther. Tthe Bank is continuing to evaluafe the effect of this new guidance on the Bank’s consolidated
statements.

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-11, Transfer and Servicing (Topic. 860): Repurchase-to-Maturity
Transactions, Repurchase Financings, and Disclosures, This update requires certain changes in the accounting for
repurchase-to-maturltY transactions and repurchase financing transactions. Additionally, this update provides
guidance for the disclosures for certain transfers of financial assets accounted for as sales, where the transferor
retains substantially all of the exposure to economic return on the transferred financial asset; and repurchase
agreements, securities _Ienqu transactions, and repurchase-to-maturity transactions that are_accounted for as
secured borrowings. This update is effective for the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2015. The update did not
have any effect on the Bank’s accounting for these transactions. The relevant required disclosures have been
included in the Note 3e and Note 5to the Bank’s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-13, Consolidation (Topic 810); Measuring the Financial Assets and
the Financial Liabilities ofa Consolidated Collateralized Fmancm? Entity. This update provides gmdance for the
measurement of the financial assets and financial liabilities of a col aterahzed_fmancmP entity (CFE). A reporting
entity that consolidates a CFE may elect to measure the financial assets and financial fiabilities of that CFE using
either the fair value or a measurement alternative as prescribed in the accounting pronouncement. This update IS

inancial
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effective for the Bank for the year ending December 31, 2016, and is not expected to have a material effect on the
Bank’s consolidated financial statements:

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Consolidation (Top|p_810L: Amendments to the Consolidation
Analysis. This update revised the consolidation model for r_eportm% entities that are requwed to evaluate whether
they “should consolidate certain legal entities. More specifically, the update modified the evaluation of whether
limited liability companies are VIES or voting interest entities, and revised the consolidatign analysis of reporting
entities involved with VIES, particularly thosé with fee arran% ments and related party relationships. This update is
effective for the Bank for the year ending December 31, 2016, and is not expected to have a material effect on the
Bank’s consolidated financial ‘statements.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-05, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other - Internal Use Software (Subtopic
350-40). The amendments in this update provide™guidance to customers about whether a cloud computing
arrangement includes a software license. Ifa cloud computing arrangement includes a software license, then the
customer should account for the software license element ofthe ar_ranlgement consistent with the acquisition of other
software licenses. If a cloud computing arrangement does not include a software license, the customer should
account for the arrangement as a service contract. Consequently, all software licenses within the scope of subtopic
350-40 will be accounted for consistent with other licenses of iritangible assets, This update is effective for the Bank
;_or the )ieatr tendm? December 31, 2016, and is not expected to have a material effect on the Bank’s consolidated
inancidl statements.

In May 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-07, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosurefor Investments in
Certain Entities That Calculate NetAsset Valueper Share gor Its Equwalents). This update removes the requirement
to categorize investments that are measured using net asset value within the fair value hierarchy. This update also
changes disclosure requirements for investments measured using net asset value. Some of the investments held in
the defined benefit retirement plans (Note 9% are currently meastred usm?_net_ asset value. This update is effectjve
for the Bank for the ?/ear ending December 31, 2017, altfiough early adoption is permitted. The Bank is continuing
to evaluate the effect ofthis new guidance on the consolidated financial statements.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-12, Plan Accounting: Defined Benefit Pension Plans FgToEnc 960?,
Defined Contribution Pension Plans (Topic 962). Health and Welfare Benefit Plans (TOE)IC 965): (Partl) Fully
Benefit-Responsive Investment Contracts, (Part I1) Plan Investment Disclosures, (Part II? Measurement Date
Practical Expedient (consensuses of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force). Prewouslly, ans were required to
disclose (1) individual investments representing 5 percent or more of net assets available for benefits and. (2) net
appreciation or depreciation for investments by general type. The amendments in Part I] ofthis updae (1) eliminate
the required disclosure related to individual” investments and T(2) removes, the requirement to_disaggregate net
appreciation or depreciation for investments by general type. This update is effective for the Bank Tor fhe year
e{u%mg [%ecember 31, 2016, and is not expected'to have a material effect on the Bank’s consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments - Overall iSu_btoR[c 825-10): Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The amendments in this update eliminate the
requirement to disclose methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value for financial
instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet. This update is effective for the Bank for the year
endm?, December 31, 2019. The Bank is continuing to evaluate the effect of this new guidance on the Bank’s
consolidated financial statements.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), This update revises the model to assess how
a lease should be classified and provides guidance for lessees, requiring lessees to present right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities on the balance sheet. The Update is effective for the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2020,
although earlier adoption is permitted. The Bank is continuing to evaluate the effect of this new guidance on its
consolidated financial statements,

(4) LOANS

Loans to Depository Institutions . L .

The Bank offers primary, secondary, and seasonal loans to eligible borrowers (d_eﬂosno_ry Institutions that maintain
reservable transaction accounts or nonpersonal time depositS and have established discount window borrowing
privileges). Each program has its own interest rate and interest is accrued using the applicable interest rate
established at leastevery 14 days by the Bank’shoard of directors, subject to review and determination by the Board
of Governors. Primary and secondary loans are extended on a short-term basis, typically ovemight, whereas
seasonal loans may beextended for a period of up to nine months,

Primary, secondary, and seasonal loans are collateralized to the satisfaction ofthe Bank to reduce credit risk. Assets
eligible to collateralize these loans include consumer, business, and real estate loans: Treasury securities; GSE debt
securities; foreign sovereign debt; municipal, corporate, and state and local government obligations; asset-backed
securities (ABS?;_ corporate honds; commercial paPer; and bank-1ssued assets, such as certificates of deposit, bank
notes, and deposit notes. Collateral is assigned a lending value that is deemed appropriate by the Bank, which is
typically fair value reduced by a margin. Loans to depository institutions are monitored daily to_ensure that
borrowers continue to meet ellqlbmty reﬂmrements for these programs. I a borrower no longer qualifies for these
programs, the Bank will generdlly request full repayment ofthe outstanding loan or, for primary or seasonal lgans,
may convert the loan to a secondary credit loan. Collateral levels are reviewed daily against outstanding, obligations,
and_ borrowers that no longer have sufficient collateral to support outstanding loans are required to provide
additional collateral or to make partial or full repayment.

The rema_ininq maturity distribution of loans to depository institutions outstanding as of December 31, 2014, was as
follows (in millions):

Within 15 days 16 days to 90 days Total
December 31, 2014 4 - 4

The Bank had no loans outstanding as of December 31, 2015,

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank did not have any loans that were impaired, restructured, past due, or on
non-accrual status, and no allowance for loan losses was réquired. There were no impaired loans during the Years
ended December 31 2015 and 2014, Interest income attributable to loans to depository institutions was Immaterial
during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,

TALF

The TALF assisted financial markets in accommodating the credit needs of consumers and businesses of all sizes by
facilitating the issuance of ABS collateralized by a variety of consumer and business loans. Each TALF loan had an
original maturity of three years, except loans secured by Small Business Administration (SBA) Pool Certificates,
loans secured by SBA Development Company Participation Certificates, or ABS hacked by student loans or
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commercial mo_rtPage loans, which had an original maturity of five years ifthe borrower so elected. The loans were
secured by eI|[q|b e collateral, with the Bank having lent an amount equal to the value ofthe collateral, as determined
by the Bank, [ess a margin.

The TALF loans were extended on a nonrecourse hasis. Ifthe borrower did not repay the loan, the Bank would have
enforced its rights in the collateral and m|ght have sold the collateral to TALF LLC, a Delaware LLC, established
forthe purpose of purchasing such assets. Pursuant to a put agreement with the Bank, TALF LLC had committed to
purchase assets that secure a TALF loan at a price equal to the principal amount outstanding plus accrued but unpaid
Interest, regardless ofthe fair value ofthe collateral.

On October 29, 2014, the final outstanding TALF loan was repaid in full. Over the life of the program, all TALF
loans were repaid in full at or before their réspective maturity dates, and as such, the Bank did not incur a loss on any
TALF loan. Subsequent to the repaNment of the final dutstanding TALF loan, the Bank terminated the put
agreement with TALF LLC. Refer to Note 6 for additional information related to TALF LLC.

TALF had no loans outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. Interest income attributable to TALF loans was
$2 million during the year ended December 31, 2014,
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(5) SYSTEM OPEN MARKET ACCOUNT

a. Domestic Securities Holdings _ _
The Bank_conducts domestic open market operations and, on behalf of the Reserve Banks, holds the resulting
securities in the SOMA.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Bank continued the purchase of Treasury securities and federal
agency and GSE MBS under the large-scale asset purchase programs as directed by the FOMC, although at a
réduced pace than Frewous_ years. I October 2014, the FOMT concluded its asset purchase programi while
maintaining its exis mg pollcsy of reinvesting principal payments from its_holdings of GSE debt securities and
federal agency and GSE MBS and, of rolling over maturing’ Treasury securities at auction. During the year ended
December 31, 2015, the Bank continued the reinvestments.

The Bank’s allocated share of activi(t]y related to domestic open market operations was 60.031 percent and 61.376
percent at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The Bank’s allocated share of Treasury securities, GSE debt securities, and federal agency and GSE MBS, net,
excluding accrued interest, held in the SOMA at December 31 was as follows (in millions):

Bnamortized B naccreted Total amortized
N Bar premiums discounts cost
Treasury securities
Notes 981,372 12,569 (3,890) 990,051
#onds 496,326 68,445 5,611 559,160
Total Treasury securities 1,477,698 81,014 9,501 1,549,211
GSE debt securities 19,777 483 20,260
Federal agency and GSE MBS 1,049,022 32,255 (446) 1,080,831
@namortized naccreted @otal amortized
N Rar premiums discounts cost
Treasury securities
Notes 1,003,472 16,983 4,738 1,015,717
#onds 507,223 76,488 5,950 577,761
Total Treasury securities 1,510,695 93471 (10,688) 1,593,478
GSE debt securities 23,739 805 24,544
Federal agency and GSE MBS 1,066,005 32,671 (602) 1,098,074

The Bank enters into transactions for the purchase of securities under agreements to resell and transactions to sell
securities under agreements to repurchase as part of its monetary policy activities. Prior to December 17, 2015,
these operations were for the purpose of further assessing the appropriate structure of such operations in supporting
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the implementation of monetary policy during normalization. From December 17, 2015, these operations have heen
undertaken as necessary to maintain the federal funds rate in atarget ran%e. Inaddition, transactions to sell securities
under at releénents to repurchase are entered into as part of a sefvice offering to foreign official and international
account holders.

There were no material transactions related to securities purchased under agreements to resell during the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. Financial information related to securities sold under agreements to Tepurchase
for the years ended December 31 was as follows (in millions):

Allocated to the Bsstiek Total SOM Ml
2015 2014 2015
fontract amountoutstanding, end ofyear 284,904 243,483 474,592 396,705
fverage daily amountoutstanding, during the year 76,004 78,586 125,656 130,281
fl aximum balance outstanding, during the year 284,904 243,483 474,592 396,705
fecurities pledged (parvalue),end ofyear 262,913 224,168 437,961 365,235
pecurities pledged (fairvalue),end ofyear 285,402 244,609 475,422 398,540
Gontractamountoutstanding, end ofyear 142,759 69,436 237,809 113,132
Bverage daily amountoutstanding, during the year 95,305 61,599 157,929 102,968
§ aximum balance outstanding, during the year 142,759 75,022 237,809 122,232
Gecurities pledged (parvalue),end ofyear 138,272 66,504 230,333 108,355
§ecurities pledged (fairvalue),end ofyear 142,769 69,436 237,825 113,132
2014
Total contract amount outstanding, end ofyear 421,663 312919 712,401 509,837
frimary Dealers and expanded counterparties 51 41 84 68
Boreign official and international accounts 98 21 164 44
Total interest expense - securities sold under
agreements to repurchase 149 68 248 112

Securities pIed%ed as collateral, at December 31, 2015 and 2014, consisted solely of Treasury securities. The
contract amount outstanding as of December 31, 2015 of securities sold under agreements to repdrchase that were
transacted with primary dealers and expandeq counterparties had a term of one business day and matured on
January 4, 2016. The contract amount outstanding as of December 31, 2015 of securities sold under agreements to
repurchase that were transacted with foreign official and international accounts had a term of one business day and
matured on January 4, 2016.
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The remaining maturity distribution of Treasury securities, GSE debt securities, federal agency and GSE MBS
bought outngiht, and securities sold under agreenients to repurchase that were allocated to the Bank at December 31,
2015 and 2014 was as follows (in millions).

Within 15 16daysto 90 9ldaysto I  Over lyear  Overbyears Over 10
days days year to Hyears to 10years years Total

December 31, 2015:
Treasum{ securities

(parvalue) 23,183 106,553 671,358 293,688 382,916 1,477,698
BSE debt securities .

(par value) 2,213 7,850 8,305 1,409 19,717
federal agency and GSE ) ) )

MB_S.(parvaIue)g 280 5411 1043331 1,049,022
Becurities sold under

agreements to repurchase

(Contract amount) 427663 - . - - . 427,663

December 31, 2014:
Treasury{ securities
(par value) 3 2,158 683,073 421,427 404,034 1,510,695

BSE debt securities )
(par value) 668 436 2414 18,780 144 23739

#ederal agency and GSE . . .
MBS (par value)l 8 3,960 1,062,037 1,066,005

Becurities sold under . .
agreements to repurchase
(contract amount) 312,919 312,919

Hhe par amount shown for federal agency and GSE MBS is the remaining principal balance ofthe securities

Federal agency and GSE MBS are reported at stated maturity In the table above. The estimated weighted average
life oftheSe securities, which differs from the stated maturity pnman%because It factors in scheduled payments and
prepayment assumptions, was approximately 6.5 and 5.7 years as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The amortized cost and par value of Treasury securities and GSE debt securities that were loaned from the SOMA
under securities lending agreements, at December 31 were as follows (in millions):

Allogated to the Bank Alloated to the Bank TotalBOMA

2015 2014 2015 2014
Treasury securities (amortized cost) 11,382 6,840 18,960 11,144
Treasury securities (par value) 10,839 6,202 18,055 10,105
GSE debt securities (amortized cost) 88 388 146 633
GSE debt securities (par value) 82 378 137 616

Securities pledged as collateral by the counterparties in the securities lending arrangements at December 31, 2015
and 2014, consisted solely of Treasury securities. The securities lending agreéments outstanding as of December 31,
2015 had a term of one business day and matured on January 4, 2016.
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The Bank enters into commitments to bug and sell Treasury securities and records the related securities on a
settlement-date basis. As of December 31, 2015, there were ng outstanding commitments.

The Bank enters into commitments to buy and sell federal aPency and GSE MBS and records the related securities
on a settlement-date basis. As of December 31, 2015, the tofal purchase price ofthe federal agency and GSE MBS
under outstanding purchase commitments was $22 187 million, none ofwhich was related to dollar rolls. The total
purchase price of outstanding purchase commitments allocated to the Bank was $13,319 million, none ofwhich was
related to dollar rolls. MBS commitments, which had contractual settlement dates extending througih January 2016,
are principally forthe purchase of TBA MBS for which the number and identity ofthe pools that will be delivered to
fulfill the commitment are unknown at the time of the trade. As of December 31, 2015, there were no outstandin
sales commitments for federal agency and GSE MBS, These commitments are subgect to varying degrees 0
off-balance-sheet market risk and Couriterparty credit risk that result from their future settlement. The an_k_requwes
the posting of cash collateral for MBS commiitments as part of its risk management practices used to mitigate the
counterparty credit risk.

Other assets consists. pr_lmanIK_of cash and short-term investments related to the federal agency and GSE MBS
portfolio. Other liabilities, which are primarily related to federal agency and GSE MBS purchases and sales,
Includes the Bank’s obligation to return cash miargin posted b¥ counterparties as collateral under commitments to
?u_rchase and sell federal agency and GSE MBS. In'addition, ofher liabilities includes obligations that arise from the
ailure of a seller to deliver MBS to the Bank on the settfement date. Although the Bank has ownership of and
records its investments inthe MBS as ofthe contractual settlement date, it is not obhgated to make payment until the
securities are delivered, and the amount included in other liabilities represents the Bank’s obligation to Rar for the
securities when delivered. The amount of other assets and other liabilities allocated to the Bank and held in the
SOMA at December 31 was as follows (in millions).

Allocated to the Bank Allocated to the Bank Tota |HO M A
2015 2014 2015 2014
Other assets:
MBS portfolio related cash and short
term investments 9 18 13 28
Otherd - - 1 1
Total otherassets 9 18 14 29
Other liabilities:
Cash margin 292 486 486 793
Bhligations from MBS transaction fails 10 19 16 30
Otherh 3 4 6 T
Total other liabilities 305 509 508 830

Accrued interest receivable on domestic securities holdings was_?_25,354 million and_ $25,561 million as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, of which $15;220 millign and $15,688 million, respectively, was
allocated to the Bank. These amounts are feported as a component of "System Open Market Account: Accrued
interest receivable" inthe Consolidated Statements of Condition.
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Information about transactions related to Treasury securities, GSE debt securities, and federal agency and GSE
MBS during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, is summarized as follows (in millions):

AB Alocated to the B afik
Total
Treasury GSEdebt Bederal agency
Motes securities securities and GSE MBS
Balance at December 31, 2013 829,103 479,300 1,308,403 32,786 850,588
Burchasesh 97,002 50,487 147 489 - 277,101
Balesl - - - - (16)
Realized gains, neth - - - - -
Brincipal payments and maturities (274 - (274 (10,797 (122,984
fmortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, net (3,315 (6,060) (9,375 (352 (4,340
inflation adjustment on inflation-indexed securities 302 803 1,105 - -
Bnnual reallocation adjustmentf 92,899 8 i3l 146,130 2,907 97,725
Balance at December 31, 2014 1,015,117 577,761 1,593,478 24,544 1,098,074
Burchasesl 1,643 457 2,100 - 215,559
Balesl . - - - (285)
Realized gains, net2 - - - - 10
Brincipal payments and maturities . 1,787 (327 2,114 (3,479 (201,408
Bmortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, net 3,314 (6,195 9,509 (307 (7,079
inflation adjustment on inflation-indexed securities 26 il 97 - -
Bonnual reallocation adjustment3 (22,234) (12,607) (34,841) (498) (24,040)
Balance at December 31, 2015 990,051 559,160 1,549,211 20,260 1,080,831
Year-ended December 31, 2014 .
Supplemental information - par value of transactions:
Purchasesi§ 98,235 49133 147368 - 267,709
Bales - - - - (16)
Year-ended December 31, 2015
Supplemental information - par value of transactions:
Purchases4 1,649 460 2,109 - 208,023
Bales - - - (267)

RPurchases and sales may include payments and receipts related to principal, premiums, discounts, and inflation compensation adjustments to the basis of
inflation-indexed securities. The amount reported as sales includes the realized gains and losses on such transactions. Purchases and sales exclude MBS TBA
transactions that are settled on a net basis &

fiRealized gains, net offset the amount of realized gains and losses included in the reported sales amount. &

fiReflects the annual adjustment to the Bank's allocated portion of the related SOMA securities that results from the annual settlement of the interdistrict
settlement account, as discussed in Note i

fncludes inflation compensation &
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Total SOMA
Total Mederal
Treasury BSE debt agency and
Hotes Blonds securities securities GSEMBS
Balance at December 31, 2013 1,495,115 864,319 2,359,434 59,122 1,533,860
Burchasesh 165,306 85,826 251,132 466,384
Balest - - - - (29)
Realized gains, netf - - - -
Brincipal payments and maturities (475) - (475) (18,544) (203,933)
Bmortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, net (5,545) (10,132) (15,677) (588) (7,199)
inflation adjustment on inflation-indexed securities 500 1327 1827 - -
Balance at December 31, 2014 1,654,901 941,340 2,596,241 39,990 1,789,083
Burchasesl 2,736 761 3,497 356,976
Balest - - - - (464)
Realized gains, net2 - - - - 16
Brincipal payments and maturities (2,977) (543) (3,520) (5,733) (333,441)
fmortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, net (5,485) (10,253) (15,738) (509) (11,721)
inflation adjustment on inflation-indexed securities 53 143 19 - -
Balance at December 31, 2015 1,649,228 931,448 2,580,676 33,748 1,800,449
Year-ended December 31,2014
Supplemental information - par value of transactions:
Purchasesi§ 167,497 83,739 251,236 - 450,633
e Bis - - - (29)
Year-ended December 31,2015
Supplemental information - par value of transactions:
Purchases3 2,147 766 3513 - 344505
Pales - (435)

BPurchases and sales may include payments and receipts related to principal, premiums, discounts, and inflation compensation adjustments to the basis of
inflation-indexed securities. The amount reported as sales includes the realized gains and losses on such transactions. Purchases and sales exclude MBS TBA
transactions that are settled on a net basis.§

BRealized gains, net offset the amount of realized gains and losses included in the reported sales amount. &

Bincludes inflation compensation.§

b. Foreign Currency Denominated Investments _ _
The Bank condycts foreign currency operations and, on behalf of the Reserve Banks, holds the resulting foreign
currency denominated investments in the SOMA.

The Bank holds foreign currency deposits with foreign central banks and the Bank for International Settlements and
invests in foreign government debt instruments of Germany, France, and Japan. These foreign government cebt
instruments are backed by the full faith and credit of the isSuing fore|gn governments. In addition, the Bank may
enter into transactjons to"purchase Euro-denominated governmient debt Securities under agreements to resell for
which the accepted collateral is the debt instruments issued bythe overnments of Belgium, France, Germany, Italy,
the Netherlands, and Spain, which are backed by the full faith and credit ofthose issting governments.
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At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there, were no securities purchased under agreements to resell outstanding and,
consequently, no related foreign securities held as collateral.

The Bank’s allocated share of activity related to foreign currency operations was 32.226 percent and 32.156 percent
at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Information about forei?n currency denominated investments valued at amortized cost and at foreign currency
market exchange rates af December 31 was as follows (in millions):

A llo ¢ ate BlocasitoteBrk Total BGSM A
2015 2014 2015 2014
Euro:
Foreign currency deposits 2,004 2,231 6,218 6,936
German government debt instruments 729 802 2,261 2,494
French government debt instruments 1,071 1,185 3,325 3,687
Japanese yen:
Foreign currency deposits 828 828 2,568 2,576
Japanese government debt instruments 1,674 1,674 5195 5,207
Total 6,306 6,720 19,567 20,900

Accrued interest receivable on foreut;_n currency denominated investments was $64 million and $83 million as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, ofwhich $21 million and $27 million, respectively, was allocated to the
Bank. These amounts are reported as a component of “System Open Market Account: Accruéd interest receivable”
inthe Consolidated Statements of Condition.

The remaining maturity distribution of foreign currency denominated investments that were allocated to the Bank at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, was as follows (in millions):

Within 15 16daysto 90 9ldaysto 1  Over lyear  Over5years

days days year to Syears to 10years Total
December31,2015:
Euro 688 1,431 339 1,232 114 3,804
Bapanese yen 881 113 517 991 - 2,502
Botal 1,569 1,544 856 2,223 114 6,306
December31,2014:
Euro 1,169 903 529 1,617 - 4,218
Bapanese yen 886 126 495 995 - 2,502
Botal 2,055 1,029 1,024 2,612 - 6,720

gglege were no foreign exchange contracts related to foreign currency operations outstanding as of December 31,

The Bank enters into commitments to buy foreign government debt instruments and records the related securities on
a settlement-date basis, During 2015, thére wefe purchases and maturities offore?n 1gove_rn_ment debt instruments
0f $3,288 million and $3,155 million, respectively, ofwhich $1,059 million and $2,026 million, respectively, were
allocated to the Bank. There were no sales of foreign government debt instruments in 2015.
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In connection with its foreqn currency activities, the Bank may enter into transations that are subject to varying
degrees of off-halance-sheet market risk and counterparty credit risk that result from their future settlement. "The
Bank controls these risks by ohtaining credit approvals, establishing transaction limits, receiving collateral in some
cases, and performing monitoring procedures.

Foreign. currency working balances held and foreign exchange contracts executed by the Bank to facilitate
international payments and currency transactions made on behalf of foreign central banks and U.S. official
Institution customers were not material as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

¢. Central Bank Liquidity Swaps

U.S. Dollar Liquidity Swaps

The Bank’s allocated share of U.S. dollar liquidity swaps was 32.226 percent and 32.156 percent at December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

The total foreign currency held under U.S. dollar liquidity swaps.inthe SOMA at December 31, 2015 and 2014, was
£$9t9h7 r%'”'ﬁn and $1,528'million, respectively, ofwhich '$321 million and $491 million, respectively, was allocated
0 the Bank.

The remaining maturity distribution of U.S. dollar liquidity swaps that were allocated to the Bank at December 31
was as follows (in millions):

2015 2014
Within 15 Within 15
days days
Euro 298 -
Japanese yen 23 491
Total 321 491

Foreign Currency Liquidity Swaps
At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there was no balance outstanding related to foreign currency liquidity swaps.

d. Fair Value of SOMA Assets and Liabilities _ _ _
The fair value amounts below are presented solely for informational purposes and are not intended to comply with
the fair value disclosures required by ASC 820, Although the fair value of SOMA security_holdings can be
substantially greater than or less than the recorded value atany point in time, these unrealized gains or losses have
no effect on the ability of the Reserve Banks, as the central bank, to meet their financial opligations and
responsibilities. Becausé SOMA securities are recorded at amortized cost, cumulative unrealized gains (losses) are
not recognized inthe Consolidated Statements of Condition and the changes in cumulative unrealized gains (loSses)
are not recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.

The fair value of the Treasury securities, GSE debt securities, federal agency and GSE MBS, and foreign
government debt_instruments field in the SOMA is subject to market risk, ansmg from movements in market
variables such as interest rates and credit risk. The fair value of federal a([;enc and GSE MBS is alsq affected by the
expected rate of prepayments of mortgage loans underlying the securities. ‘The fair value of foreign government
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debt instruments is also affected by currencx/lrisk. Based on evaluations performed as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, there are no credit impairments of SOMA securities holdings.

The following table presents the amartized cost, fair value, and cumulative unrealized gains (losses) on the Treasury
securities, GSE debt securities, and federal agency and GSE MBS held inthe SOMA at December 31 (in millions):

Allocazdtothe Berke 2015 Allocated o the Bank: 2014:

AsettiBkTB Aty
Cumulat B lat
real d un | d
[} t d ga A tized [
t F (losses ) st Fairva lue (losses )
Treasury securities:

Notes 990,051 1,002,158 12,107 1,005,717 1,033,196 17479
Bonds 559,160 604,222 45,062 577,761 646,241 68,480
Total Treasury securities 1,549,211 1,606,380 57,169 1,593,478 1,679,437 85,959
GSE debt securities 20,260 21,110 850 24544 26,084 1,540
Federal agency and GSE MBS 1,080,831 1,086,718 5,887 1,098,074 1,117,384 19,310
Total domestic SOMA portfolio securities holdings 2,650,302 2,714,208 63,906 2,716,096 2,822,905 106,809

Memorandum - Commitments for:
Purchases of Treasury securities - - - - -
Burchases of Federal agency and GSE MBS 13,319 13,309 (10) 17,610 17,678 68
Biales of Federal agency and GSE MBS - - - - - -

THSIAZE Tod SVAZ
THSMAD THAT

Cumulative Cum uBktive

unrealized unrealized

Amodlized gains Amortized gains
. cost Fairvalue (losses) cost Fairvalue (losses)
Treasury securities:

Notes 1,649,228 1,669,395 20,167 1,654,901 1,683,377 28,476
$onds 931,448 1,006,514 75,066 941,340 1,052,916 111,576
Total Treasury securities 2,580,676 2,675,909 95,233 2,596,241 2,736,293 140,052
GSE debt securities 33,748 35,165 1417 39,990 42,499 2,509
Federal agency and GSEMBS N . 1,800,449 1,810,256 9,807 1,789,083 1,820,544 31,461
Total domestic SOMA portfolio securities holdings 4,414,873 4,521,330 106,457 4425314 4,599,336 174,022

Memorandum - Commitments for:
Purchases of Treasury securities - - - - - -
Blurchases of Federal agency and GSE MBS 22,187 22,110 (17) 28,692 28,803 il
Biales of Federal agency and GSE MBS - - - - -

The fair value of Treasury securities and GSE debt securities was determined using ?rlcmg services that provide
market consensus prices based on_indicative quotes from various market participants. The fair value of feceral
a%ency and GSE MBS was determined using a pricing service that utilizes a model-based approach that considers
observable inputs for similar securities.

The cost hases of securities purchased under agreements to resell, securities sold under agreements to repurchase,
central bank liquidity swaps and other investrents held in the SOMA domestic portfolio approximate fair value.
Due to the short-term nature of these agreements and the defined amount that will be received upon settlement,
the cost basis is estimated to approximate fair value.
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At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the fair value offorejﬁn currency denominated investments was $19,630 million
and $20,996 million; resPectJver, of which $6,326 million and $6,751 million, respectively, was allocated to the
Bank. The fair value of oreign government debt instruments was determined using Prlcmg services that provide
market consensus prices baséd on indicative quotes from various market participants. The fair value of foreign
gutrrencty (tieposns and securities purchased under agreements to resell was determined by reference to market
Interest rates.

The foIIowin%tabIe provides additional information on the amortized cost and fair values of the federal agency
and GSE MBS portfolio at December 3L (in millions):

Distribution of MBS

holdings by coupon rate Bmortized cost Bairvalue A mortized cost Hairvalue

Allocated to the Bank:
2.0% 6,722 6,599 7,849 7,744
2.5% 69,953 69,047 70,343 69,642
3.0% 332,831 326,132 315,039 310,738
3.5% 347,822 349,344 295,407 300,370
4.0% 216,802 221,261 262,719 210,795
4.5% 69,585 74,465 95,665 103,017
5.0% 29,374 31,530 40,229 43,404
5.5% 6,686 7,197 9,349 10,074
6.0% 926 1,000 1,295 1,403
6.5% 130 143 179 197

Total 1,080,831 1,086,718 1,098,074 1,117,384

Dotz SOMA- 2015 Amortized cost 2015 Fair value 2014 Amortized cost 2014 Fair value
2.0% 11,198 10,993 12,788 12,618
2.5% 116,527 115,018 114,609 113,468
3.0% 554,430 543,270 513,289 506,280
3.5% 579,403 581,940 481,305 489,390
4.0% 361,149 368,576 428,047 441,204
4.5% 115,914 124,043 155,867 167,844
5.0% 48,931 52,523 65,544 70,719
5.5% 11,138 11,989 15,232 16,414
6.0% 1,542 1,666 2,110 2,287
6.5% 217 238 292 320

Total 1,800,449 1,810,256 1,789,083 1,820,544
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The following tables present the realized gains (Io_sses% and the change in the cumulative unrealized gaing F_Iosses)
related to SOMA domestic securities holdings during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in millions):

Allocatedio Banka

ki ]
Change in Change in
cumulative cumulative
unrealized gains unrealized gains
Realized gainsh (losses)g3 Realized gainsl (losses)2,3
Treasury securities - (26,261) - 93,917
GSE debt securities - (657) - (366)
Federal agency and GSEMBS 26 (12,818) 48 41,329
Total 26 (39,736) 18 134,880
Total SEHSATM
B03 [}
Change in Change in
cumulative cumulative
unrealized gains unrealized gains
Realized gainsfik (losses) Realized gainsl (losses)?2
Treasury securities - (44,819) - 158,150
GSE debt securities - (1,092) - (605)
Federal agency and GSEMBS 43 (21,654) 81 69,749
Total 13 (67,565) 81 207,294

fiRealized gains (losses) are reported in “Non-interest (loss) income: System Open Market Account: Federal agency and government-sponsored enterprise
mortgage-backed securities gains, net” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.E

BBecause SOMA securities are recorded at amortized cost, the change inthe cumulative unrealized gains (losses) is not reported in the Consolidated Statements
of Income and Comprehensive Income.k

@ The amount reported as change in cumulative unrealized gains (losses) allocated to the Bank is affected by the annual adjustment to the Bank's allocated
portion ofthe related SOMA securities, as discussed in Note 3f.&

The amount of change in cumulative unrealized gains Slosse_s?_ position, net, related to foreign currency denominated
Investments was a 0ss of $33 million and a gfam of $18 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, of which $0 million and $6 million, respectively, were alfocated to the Bank.

Treasury securities, GSE debt securities, federal agency and GSE MBS, and foreign government debt instruments
are classified as Level 2 within the ASC_820 hierarchy because the fair values aré based on indicative quotes and
other ohservable inputs obtained from independent pricing services.. The fair value hierarchy level of SOMA
financial assets is not necessarily an indication ofthe risk associated with those assets.
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(6) CONSOLIDATED VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

a. Description of Consolidated VIES

. Maiden Lane LLC

To facilitate the merger of The Bear Stearns Companies, Inc. (Bear Stearns) and JPMorgan Chase & Co. (JPMCB,
the Bank extended credit to ML in June 2008, ML is a Delaware LLC forméd by the Bank to acquire certain assets
0f Bear Stearns and to manage those assets. The assets acquired by ML were valiied at $29.9 billion as of March 14,
2008, the date that the Bank committed to the transaction, and largely consisted of federal agency and GSE MBS
non_-a%ency residential mortgage-back securities (RMBS), commercial and residential morigage loans, and
derivatives and associated hedges.

The Bank extended a senior, loan of approximately $28.8 billion and JPMC extended a suboydinated loan ofil.lS
billign to finance the acquisition ofthe assets, both of which were repaid in full plus interest in 2012. The Bank has
continued and will continue to sell the remaining assets from the ML portfolio as market conditions warrant and if
the sales represent_%ood value for the public. I accordance with the ML agreements, proceeds from future asset
sales, will be distributed to the Bank as contingent interest after all derivative instruments in ML have been
terminated and paid or sold from the portfolio.

iIl. Maiden Lane I1LLC

The Bank extended creditto ML 11, a Delaware LLC formed to purchase non-age_ncy RMBS from the reinvestment
%ool ofthe securities lending portfolios of several regulated U.S. insurance subsidiarigs of American International

rouB, Inc. (AIG). ML I ﬁurchased from the AIG subsidiaries non-agency RMBS with an approximate fair value
0t $20.8 billion as of October 31, 2008. ML 11 financed this purchase by borrowing $19.5 billion from the Bank and
through the deferral of $1.0 billion ofthe purchase price payable to the AIG subsidiaries. Both the loan and the fixed
deferred purchase price were paid in full plus interest in 2012.

On March 19, 2012, ML Il was dissolved and the Bank began the process of winding up in accordance with and as
required by Delaware |aw ang the agreements glove_rm_ng ML, 1. As part of that ?rocess during the Xear ended
December 31, 2014, after paying expenses, ML 11 distributed its remammq assets to the Bank and to AIG and its
subsidiaries in accordance with the agreement. Distributions were made 10 the Bank in the form of_contm?_ent
Interest totaling $53 million and to AIG and its subsidiaries in the form of variable deferred purchase price totaling
$11 million during the year ended December 31, 2014. On November 12, 2014, a certificate of cancellation was
filed in the office ofthe Delaware Secretary of State, thereby terminating the legal existence of ML I

lii. Maiden Lane [1ILLC

The Bank extended, credit to ML 111, a Delaware LLC formed to purchase ABS collateralized debt obligations
(CDOs) from certain third-party counterparties of AIG. Financial Products Corp (AIGFP), ML I bofrowed
approximately $24.3 billion trom the Bank, and AIG provided an equ@/ contribution of $5.0 billion to ML 11, The
proceeds were used to purchase ABS CDOs. with a fair value of $29.6 billion as of October 31, 2008. The
counterparties received $26.8 billion net of %rlnmpal and interest received and finance charges paid on the ABS
DOs, The LLC also made a payment to AIGFP of $2.5 billion representing the over collatéralization previously
posted by AIGFP and retained by counterparties in resRect ofterminated CDS as.compared to the LLC’s fair value
acquisition prices calculated as of October 31, 2008, The aggregate amount ofpnana_I and interest proceeds from
CDOs received after the announcement date, but Rnortot e séttlement dates, net o flnancm% costs, amounted to
a%romm_atel}/ $0.3 billion and therefore reduced the amount of funding required at settlement by $0.3 billion, from
$29.6 billionto $29.3 billion. Both the loan and the equity contribution were repaid in full plus interest in 2012,
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On September 10, 2012, ML [1I was dissolved, and the Bank began the process of winding up in accordance with
and as required by Delaware law and the agreements ?ov_ern!ng ML [1I. As part of that process, durm%the ear
ended December 31, 2014, after aymg expenses, ML [TI distributed its remaining assets to the Bank andto AIG in
accordance with the agreement. Distributions were made to the Bank in the form of contin entmteresttotallng $14
million and to AIG inthe form of excess amounts totaling $7 million during the year ended December 31, 2012, On
November 12, 2014, a certificate of cancellation was filed in the office ofthe Delaware Secretary of State, thereby
terminating the legal existence of ML 111,

iv. TALFLLC

As discussed in Note 4, TALF LLC was formed in connection with the implementation ofthe TALF, TALF LLC
was established for the limited purpose of purchasing any ABS that might be surrendered to the Bank by borrowers
under the TALF or, in certain limited circumstances, TALF loans. Fundm% for TALF LLC’s purchases of these
securities was derived first throu?h the fees received by TALF LLC from the Bank for this commitment and any
interest earned on its investments. If that funding had proved insufficient for the purchases TALF LLC had
committed to make under the put agreement, the Treasury and the Bank had committed to lend to TALF LLC. On
March 25, 2009, the Treasug provided initial funding to TALF LLC of $100 million. On January 15, 2013, the
Treasury and the Bank agreed to eliminate their funding commitments to TALF LLC. Pursuant to this agreement on
February 6, 2013, TALF LLC repaid in full the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Treasury loan,

On October 31, 2014, TALF LLC was dissolved and the Bank began the process of winding up in accordance with
and as required by Delaware law and the agreements governing TALF LLC. As part ofthat Process, during the year
ended December'31, 2014, after paying expenses, TALF LLC distributed its remaining assets to the T_reasur¥ and to
the Bank in gccordance_ with the agreement. Distributions were made in the form of contingent interest to the
Treasury totaling $98 million and to the Banktotal|n?_$11_m|ll|on durmg the year ended Decémber 31, 2014, On
November 26, 2014, a certificate of cancellation was Tiled in the office ofthe Delaware Secretary of State, thereby
terminating the legal existence of TALF LLC.
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b. Summary Information for Consolidated VIEs

The classification of significant assets and liabilities of ML at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is summarized in the

following table (in millions):

Assets:
Short-term investments
Bwap contracts

Btherinvestments
Bubtotal

Cash, cash equivalents, accrued interest
receivable, and otherreceivables
Total investments held by consolidated VIES

Liabilities:
Swap contracts
Bash collateral on swap contracts

Other liabilities
Total liabilities of consolidated VIES

14

1,399
124

il
1,534

217
1811

41
85

1
127

There were no assets and liabilities remaining inthe ML II, ML [1I, and TALF LLC at December 31, 2015 and 2014,

The Bank’s approximate maximum exposure to loss at December 31, 2015 and 2014, was $1,565 million and
$1,534 million, respectively. These estimates incorporate potential losses associated with the investments recorded
on the Bank’s balance sheet. Additionally, information concerning the notional exposure on swap contracts is

contained in the derivatives credit risk section ofthis Note.
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The net income attributable to ML for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, was as follows (in millions):

2015 R014
Interest income: Investments held by consolidated VIES ~ § 4 7

Non-interest income:

Realized portfolio holdings gains, net 32 1
dinrealized portfolio holdings gains, net 3 36
Non-interest income: Consolidated VIES gains, net 35 37
Total net interest income and non-interest income 39 114
Less:Professional fees 3 4
Net income attributable to consolidated VIES $ % 0§ 110

i. DebtSecurities

ML has investments in short-term instruments with maturities of greater than three months and less than one year
when acquired. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, ML’s short-térm instruments consisted of U.S. Treasury bills.

Other investments primarily consist of non-agency RMBS and commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS).

ii. Derivative Instruments

Derivative contracts are instruments, such as swap contracts, that derive their value from underlying assets, indexes,
reference rates, or a combination ofthese factors. The ML portfolio is composed of derivative financial instruments
included in a total return swap (TRS) agreement with JPMC. ML and JPMC entered intq the TRS with reference
obligations representing CDS primarily on CMBS and RMBS, with various market participants, including JPMC.

On an gngoing basis, ML pledﬁes collateral for credit or liquidity related shortfalls. Separately, ML and JPMC
en?age inDilateral posting of collateral to coverthe net mark-to-market (MTM) variations in the swap,portfolio. ML
only nets the collateral received from JPMC from the bilateral MTM posting for the reference obligations for which
JPMC is the counterparty.

The values of ML’s cash and cash e(iuivalents include cash collateral associated with the TRS of $72 million and
$128 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectwe%/. In addition, ML has pledged $52 million and $87
million of U.S. Treasury bills to JPMC as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

ML has entered into an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. master netting a%reementwnh JPMC
in connection with the TRS. This ag_reementco_rowdes ML with the right to liquidate securities held as collateral and
to offset receivahles and payables with JPMC inthe event of default. This agreement also establishes the method for
determmln? the net amount of receivables and payables that ML is entitled to receive from or owes to each
counterparfy to the swaps that underlie the TRS baséd upon the fair value ofthe relevant CDS.

For the derivative balances reported in the Consolidated Statements of Condition, ML offsets its asset and liability
positions held with the same counterparty. In addition, ML offsets the cash collateral held with JPMC against any
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net liabilities of JPMC with ML under the TRS. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were ng amounts subject
to an enforceable master netting agreement that were not offset in the Consolidated Statements of Condition,

The maximum potential amount of future payments the seller of credit protection could be required to make to the
bu?/er of credit protection under a CDS is équal to the, notional amount of the contract. For ML, the maximum
go ential payout (notional) associated with credit protection sold was $162 million and $219 million as of December

1, 2015 and 20 4,_re_spect|veIX and the maximum potential recovery (notional) associated with credit protection
hought was $195 million and $213 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, res ectwelsy. The change in notional
amounts Is representative of the volume of activity for the year ended December 31, 2015.

There were 128 and 210 CDS contracts outstanding in the ML portfolio as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The majority ofthe CDS held by ML ha rema;nm? maturities ofgreater than five years and reference
obligations with non-invéstment grade (BB+ or lower) credit rafings as of Decémber 31, 2015 dnd 2014,

¢. Fair Value Measurement _ _ _
ML has adopted ASC 820 and ASC 825 and has elected the fair value option for all holdings.

The accounting and clagsification of these investments appropriately reflect the ML’s and the Bank’s,intent with
restptec,tS tg btngapt)iuorﬁgse ofthe investments and most closely reflect the"amount ofthe assets available to liquidate the
entity .

Determination of Fair Value

ML values its investments and cash equivalents on the hasis of last available bid Rnces or current market quotations
provided Qy dealers, or ercm? services selected under the supervision of the Bank’s designated investment
manager. To determine the value of a particular investment, pricing services may use certain information with
respectto market transactions in such investments or compara_bl_e investments, various relationships observed in the
market between investments, quotations from dealers, and pricing metrics and calculated yield measures based on
valuation methodologies commanly employed in the market for such investments. The fair value of swap contracts
i provided by JPMC as calculation agent and is reviewed by the investment manager.

Market quotations may not represent fair value in certain instances in which the investment mana?er and the VIES
believe that facts and"circumstances applicable to an issuer, a seller, a purchaser, or the market for a particular
investment cause such market quotations to not reflect the fair value ofan investment. In such cases or when market
(uotations are unavailable, the, investment manager applies proprietary valuation models that use_collateral
performance scenarios and pricing metrics derived from the reported performance of investments with similar
characteristics as well as available market data to determine fair value.

Due to the uncertainty inherent in determining the fair value of investments that do not have a readily available fair
value, the fair value ofthese investments may differ from the values that may ultimately be realized"and paid.
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The following tables present the financial instruments recorded in VIEs at fair value as of December 31, 2015 by
ASC 820 hiefarchy (in millions):
Level 1 Level 21 Level 3 Nettingh  Total fairvalue
Assets:
Short-term investments 1,49 - - - 1,49
Bash equivalentsh 213 - - - 213
Bwap contracts - 130 (74) 56
fBther investments - 2 1 - 13
Total assets 1,709 [V 131 (74) 1,718
Liabilities:
Swap contracts - - 5 (38) 21

@There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and no material transfers between Levels 2 and 3 during the year ended December 31, 2015
@Derivative receivables and payables and the related cash collateral received and paid are shown net when a master netting agreement exists. &
BFCash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds.&

The following tables present the financial instruments recorded in VIEs at fair value as of December 31, 2014 by
ASC 820 hiefarchy (in millions):

Level 1p Level 21 Level 3 Nettingh  Total fairvalue
Assets:

Short-term investments 1,399 - - - 1,399
Bash equivalentsp 214 - - - 214
Buwap contracts - 240 (116) 124
Btherinvestments - 6 5 - il
Total assets 1,673 6 245 (116) 1,808

Liabilities:
Swap contracts - - 115 (74) 41

BThere were no transfers between Level 1and Level 2 during the year ended December 31, 2014.§
BDerivative receivables and payables and the related cash collateral received and paid are shown net when a master netting agreement exists.§
BCash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds &

As of December 31, 2015, both the Level 3 assets and liabilities held in the Consolidated Statements of Condition as
“Investments held by consolidated variable interest entities” and “Liabilities of consolidated variable interest
entities,” respectively, and the associated unrealized gains and losses related to those assets and liabilities are

immaterial.

The table below presents a reconciliation of all assets and liabilities measured at fair valye on a recurring basis using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 32 as of December 31, 2014 (in millions). Unrealized gains and losses relate
to those assets and liabilities still held at December 31, 2014 are reported as a component of “Investments held by
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consolidated variable interest entities” and “Liabilities of consolidated variable interest entities,” respectively, inthe
Consolidated Statements of Condition.

Change in unrealized
Purchases, gains (losses) related
Fairvalue sales, Netrealized/ Fairvalue to financialinstruments

Gross Gross

December 31, issuances, and unrealized December 31, held at December 31,

2013 settlements, net gains (losses) transfers in§2 transfers outl2 2014 2014
Assets:
Commercialmortgage loans 507 (523) 16
Btherinvestments 8 4 (4) - (3) 5 (4)

Totalassets 515 (519) 12 - (3) 5 (4)

Swap contracts, net 152 (48) 21 - - 125 13

BThe amount of transfers is based on the fair values of the transferred assets at the beginning ofthe reporting period &

BOther investments, with a December 31, 2013 fair value of $3 million, were transferred from Level 2 to Level 3 because they are valued at December 31, 2014
based on non-ohservable inputs (Level 3). These investments were valued in the prior year based on quoted prices for identical or similar assets in non-active
markets or model-based techniques for which all significant inputs are observable (Level 2) &

The following table presents thel%rc()_ss components of purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements, net, shown for

the year ended December 31, 2012 (in millions):
Purchases,
- sales,
issuances, and
Purchases Sales Issuances Settlementsp  settlements, net
Assets:
Commercial mortgage loans - - - (523) (523)
Other investments 1 - - 3 4
Total assets 1 - - (520) (519)
Swap contracts, net - (24) - (24) (48)
Bincludes paydowns. &

As of December 31, 2014, the only material Level 3 assets or liabilities for the VVIES were the swap contracts held
by ML. For the swap contracts, there are various valuation methodologies, but in each case, the fair valug of the
instrument underlying the swap is a significant input used to derive the fair value of the swap, The key
unohservable inputs used to value those underlying instruments are credit spreads when the underlying instrumerit
IS a market index or performance data (i.e. discount rates, prepayment rates, default rates, and loss severity) when
the underlying instrument is a debt security.
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(7) BANK PREMISES, EQUIPMENT, AND SOFTWARE
Bank premises and equipment at December 31 were as follows (in millions):

2015 2014

Bank premises and equipment:
Land and land improvements 68 68
Buildings 546 526
Building machinery and equipment 106 104
Bonstruction in progress 5 4
Burniture and equipment 98 95
Bubtotal 823 797
Accumulated depreciation (344) (322)
Bank premises and equipment, net 479 475
Depreciation expense, forthe years ended December 31 34 32

The Bank leases space to outside tenants with remaining lease terms ran%mg from two to nine Xears. Rental income
from such leases was $6,4 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and is reported as
a component of “Non-interest income: Other” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive
Income. Future minimum lease payments that the Bank will receive under non-cancelable lease agreements in
existence at December 31, 2015, aré as follows (in millions):

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter
Total 2

O —J W LW U1l U1 o

The Bank had capitalized software assets, net of amortization, of $133 million and $119 million at December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively. Amortization expense was $22 million and $20 million for the years ended December
31, 2015 and 2014, respec |veéy. Capitalized software assets are reported as a component of “Other assets” in the
Consolidated Statements of Condition and the related amortization is reported as a component of “Operating
expenses: Other” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income.
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(8) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In conducting its operations, the Bank enters into contractual commitments, normally with fixed expiration dates or
termination provisions, at specific rates and for specific purposes.

At December 31, 2015, the Bank was obligated under a non-cancelable lease for premises and egmpme_nt with a
_remamm? term of approximately three yearS. The lease provides for increased lease payments based upon increases
in real estate taxes, operating costs, or Selected price indexes.

Rental expense under operating leases for certain operating facilities, warehouses, and gata processm? and office
equipment (including taxes, insurance, and maintenance When included in rent), net of sublease rentals, was $
million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Future minimum lease gayments under noncancelable operating leases, net of sublease rentals, with terms of one
year or more, at December 31, 2015, were not material.

At December 31, 2015, there were no material unrecorded unconditional purchase commitments or obligations in
excess of one year.

Under the Insurance Agreement of the Reserve Banks, each of the Reserve Banks has agreed to bear, on a
er-incident basis, a share of certain losses in excess of 1 percent of the capital paid-in of the claiming Reserve
ank, up to 50 percent of the total caEntaI paig-in of all Reserve Banks. Losses are borne in the ratio of a Reserve

Bank’s capital paid-in to the total capital paid-in of all Reserve Banks at the beginning ofthe calendar year inwhich

the loss is shared. No claims were outstanding under the agreement at December 31,2015 and 2014.

The Bank is involved in certain legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of business, Although it is
difficult to predict the ultimate outcome of these actions, in management’s opinion, based on discussions with
counsel, the legal actions and claims will be resolved without material adverse effect on the financial position or
results of operations of the Bank.

(9) RETIREMENT AND THRIFT PLANS

Retirement Plans

The Bank currently offers three_defined benefit retirement fplans to its employees, based on length of service and
level of compensation. Substant|all¥ all ofthe employees ofthe Reserve Banks, Board of Goverriors, and Office of
EmpIoYee Benefits of the Federal Reserve System (OEB) participate in the Retirement Plan for Employees of the
Federal Reserve S%/stem (System Plan).LUnder the Dodd-Frank Act, newly hired Bureau employees are eligible to
participate in the System Plan and, durm%the years ended December 31,°2015 and 2014, certain costs associated
with the System Plan were reimbursed Ty the Bureau. In addition, employees at certain compensation levels
%artlupate In the Benefit Equalization Retirement Plan (BEP) and certain Reserve Bank officers participate in the

upplemental Retirement Plan for Select Officers of the Federal Reserve Banks (SERP).

1The OEB was established by the System to administer selected System benefit plans.
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The Bank, on behalfofthe System, recognizes the net asset or net liability and costs associated with the System Plan
in its consolidated financial ‘statements.” The Bank reports the net costs related to the System Plan, as well as the
costs related to the BEP and SERP, as a component of “Operating exBenses: Net periodic pension expense” in its
Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income. Accrued pension benefit costs are reported as a component of
“Prepaid pension henefit costs” Ifthe funded status is.a net asset or “Accrued benefit costs” ifthe funded Status is a
net liability inthe Consolidated Statements of Condition.

Folllloovxéslg is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the System Plan benefit obligation (in
millions):

2015 2014

Estimated actuarial present value ofprojected

benefit obligation at January 1 13,641 10,476
Service cost-benefits earned during the period 487 355
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 511 530
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,044) 2,630
Contributions by plan participants 5 5
Special termination benefits 6 15
Benefits paid (396) (370)
Estimated actuarial present value of projected

benefit obligation at December 31 13,270 13,641

In October 2014, the Society of Actuaries released new mortality tables (RP-2014) and in October 2015 and 2014
new mortality prohectlon scales {M_P-2015 and MP 2014, resFectwely) foruse inthe valuation of benefits liabilities,
The adoption of these new mortality tables and new mortality projection scales, adjusted for the System’s recent
mortality experience and the retiremient rates of System retiregs, resulted in an estimated net decrease ofthe System
Plan ptrpjelcted benefit obligation of approximately $471 million and an increase of $935 million in 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
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Following is a reconciliation showin_(t; the beginning and ending balance of the System Plan assets, the funded
status, and the accrued pension benefit costs (in millions):

2015 2014

Estimated plan assets at January 1(ofwhich $12,608 and $10,687 is

measured at fairvalue as of January 1, 2015 and 2014, respectively) 12,669 10,808
Actual return on plan assets (258) 1,734
Contributions by the employers 480 492
Contributions by plan participants 5 5
Benefits paid (396) (370)
Estimated plan assets at December 31 (ofwhich $12,477and $12,608 is

measured at fairvalue as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively) 12,500 12,669

Funded status and accrued pension benefit costs (770) (972)
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss are shown below:
Prior service cost (263) (356)
Miet actuarial loss (3,333) (3,484)

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,596) (3,840)

The Bank, on behalf of the System, funded $480 million during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The Bureau is réquired by the Dodd-Frank Act to fund the System glan for each Bureau employee
based on an established formula. Dun_n%the year ended December 31, 2015, the Bank provided for contributions
from the Bureau of $26 million, which wag received by the Bank in February 2016. During the year ended
December 31, 2014, the Bank provided for and received contributions of $12.4 million.

The accumulated benefit pbligation for the System Plan, which differs from the estimated actuarial |present value of
projected henefit obligation Decause it is based on current rather than future compensation levels, was $11,727
million and $11,985 niillion at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The weighted-average assumptions used in developing the accumulated pension benefit obligation for the System
Plan as 0f December 31 were as follows:

2015 2014
Discount rate 4.42% 4,05%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4,00%
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Net periodic benefit expenses for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, were actuari_al(lly determined using
aJanuary 1measurement date. The weighted-average assumptions used in developing net periodic benefit expenses
forthe System Plan for the years were as follows:

2015 2014
Discount rate 4.05% 4.92%
Expected asset return 6.75% 7.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.50%

Discount rates reflect yields available on hlgh-twahty corporate bonds that would generate the cash flows necessary
to pay the System Plan’s benefits when dug. The expected long-term rate of refurn on assets is an estimate that is
based on a Combination of factors, including the System Plan’s asset allocation strategy and historical returns;
surveys of expected rates_of return for other entities’ plans and for various asset classes; a projected return for
equities and fixed income investments based on real interest rates, inflation expectations, and equity risk premiums;
and surveys of expected returns in equity and fixed income markets.

The components of net periodic pension benefit expense (credit) for the System Plan for the years ended December
31 are shown below (in m|II|ons)p:

2015 2014

Service cost - benefits earned during the period 487 355
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 511 530
Amortization of prior service cost 93 100
Amortization ofnet loss 223 101
Expected return on plan assets (857) (759)

Net periodic pension benefit expense 517 321
Special termination benefits 6 15
Bureau of Consumer Financial Protection contributions - (12)

Total periodic pension benefit expense 523 330

Estimated amounts that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension
benefit expense in 2016 are shown below (in millions):

Prior service cost 93
Net actuarial loss 200
Total 293
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Following is a summary of expected benefit payments, excluding enhanced retirement benefits (in millions):

2016 444
2017 475
2018 508
2019 540
2020 574
2021 - 2025 3,395

Total 5,936

The System’s Committee on Plan Administration is resPonsmIe for oversight of the operations of the Retirement
Plan, which_includes the Retirement Plan trust and for determining the amounts necessary to maintain the
Retirement Plan on an actuarially sound basis and the amounts that employers must contribute t pay the expenses
of OEB and the Retirement Plan.

The System’s Committee on Investment Performance (CIP) is responsible for establishing investment policies
selecting Investment managers, and monitoring the investment managers’ compliance with 1ts policies. At
December 31, 2015, the System Plan’s assefs were held in 14 investment vehicles: 3. actively-managed
long-duration fixed income portfolios, a passively-managed long-duration fixed income portfolio, an indexed U.S,
eq_unY fund, an indexed non-U.S. developed-mérkets equity fund, an indexed emerging-markets equn?/ fund, 2
private equity limited partnersh|Ps, a private equity separate”account, 2 core real estate finds, a real estate limited
partnership, and a money market fund.

The diversification ofthe System Plan’s investments is designed to limit concentration of risk and the risk of loss
related to an individual asset class. The three actwely-mana?ed long-duration fixed income portfolios are separate
accounts benchmarked to a custom benchmark of 55°percent Barclays Lonq Credit Index and 45 Rercen_t Citigroup
15+ years U.S. Treasury STRIPS Index. This custom benchmark was selected as a proxy to match the liabilifies of
the Plan and the guidelines for these portfolios are designed to limit portfolio deviations from the benchmark. The
gasswely-mana?ed long-duration fixed-income portfolio is invested in 2 commingled funds and is benchmarked to
b5 percent Barclays Long Credit Index and 45 percent Barclays 20+ STRIPS Index. The indexed U.S. equity fund is
intended to track the overall U.S. equity market across market capitalizations and is benchmarked to the Dow Jones
U.S. Total Stock Market Index, The ‘indexed non-U.S. developed-markets eqm(tjy fund is intended to track the
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) World ex-US Investible Markets Index (IMI), which includes stocks
from™ 23 markéts deemed by MSCI to be “developed markets,” The indexed emerging-markets equity fund is
intended to track the MSCI Emerging Markets IMI Index, which includes stocks from 21 markets deemed oy MSCI
to be “emerging markets.” The™3 Indexed equity funds include stocks from across the market capitdlization
spectrum (i.€., large-, mid- and_small-ca? stocks). The 2 private equity limited partnerships invest globally acrass
various private equﬂy strategies and the private equity se_Parate account Invests in’_various private equity
Investments globally across various strategws. The private equity Separate account invests in various private et&uty
funds and coinvestment opportunities globally in private companies and tar%e_ts returns in excess of public markes
overa co_mPIete market cycle. The two U.S. core real estate funds invest in"high quality, well leased, low leverage
commercial real estate throughout the U.S. The Real estate limited partnership invests in non-core U.S. commercial
real estate including development and repositioning of assets. Finally, the money market fund, which invests in
short term Treasury and agency debt and repurchase a?reements backed by Treasury and agency debt, is the
repository for cash balances and adheres to a constant dolar methodology.
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Permitted and prohibited investments, including the use of derivatives, are defined in either the trust aﬁreemen_t (for
the passivel -managied long-duration fixed income portfolio) or the investment giuldelmes ?fort e remainin

investments). The CIP reviews the trust agreement and approves all investment guidelines as part ofthe selection o
each investment to ensure thatthey are consistent with the CIP’s investment objectives for the System Plan’s assets.

The System Plan’s policy weight and actual asset allocations at December 31, by asset category, are as follows:

2015 A ctual asse thActualassetalocations

Policy weight 2015 2014
Fixed income 50.0% 48.6% 51.2%
U.S. equities 24.1% 25.4% 25.8%
International equities 17.4% 17.8% 17.6%
Emerging markets equities 4.5% 4.5% 4.9%
Private equity 1.7% 1.3% 0.0%
Real estate 11% 11% 0.0%
Cash 0.0% 0.7% 0.5%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Employer contributions to the System Plan _ma%/ be determined usm? different assumptions than those required for
financial reRortmg. The System Plan’s anticipated funding level for 2016 is $480 million. In 2016, the Bank plans to
make montnly contributions of $40 million and will reevaluate the monthly contributions upon completion of the
2016 actuarial valuation. The Bank’s Brogected benefit obligation, funded Status, and net pension expenses for the
BEP and the SERP at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and for'the years then ended, were not material.

Determination of Fair Value _ , o

The SYStem Plan’s publicly available investments are valued on the basis ofthe last available bid prices or current
market quotations provided by dealers, or pricing services. To determine the value of a particular investment,
prlcmgz services,may use information on transactions in such investments, quotations from dealers, pricing metrics
market transactions in comparable investments, relationships observed in the market between investments, and
g:alcu{atedt yield measures based on valuation methodologies commonly employed in the market for such
Investments.

_Commmqled funds are valued using the net asset value as a practical expoed|ent, as_ determined by the respective
issuer ofthe fund based on the fair Value ofthe underlying investments. Private equity and real estate investments
are valued using the net asset value, as a practical expedient, which is based on the fair value of the underlying
investments. The net asset value is adjusted for contributions, distributions, and hoth realized and unrealized gains
aﬂd losses incurred during the period. The realized and unrealized gains and losses are based on reported valuation
changes.

Because of the uncertainty inherent in determining the fair value of investments that do not have a readily available
fair value, the fair value ofthese investments may differ significantly from the values that would have been reported
Ifl ta reatd|I ly tgywanalble Jaw value had existed for these investments and may differ materially from the values that may
ultimately be realized.
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The following tables present the financial instruments recorded at fair value as of December 31 by ASC 820
hierarchy (in millions).

Description Bevel 1§ fBevel21 fBevel 3 Fotal
Short-term investmentsf 34 118 - 152
Treasury and Federal

agency securities 64 2,182 2,246
Corporate honds - 2,130 - 2,130
Other fixed income securities - 373 - 313
Bollective trust funds - 7,205 - 7,205
Private equity - 157 157
Real estate - - 214 214

Total 98 12,008 3N 12,417

BThere were no transfers between Level 1and Level 2 during the year.
BShort-term investments include cash equivalents of $88 million &

Description Ded ] flevel21 fevel 3 fotal
Short-term investments 21 94 - 121
Treasury and Federal

agency securities 111 2,179 2,290
Corporate bonds . 2,109 - 2,109
Other fixed income securities - 443 - 443
Bollective trust funds - 7,598 - 7,598
Private equity - - 47 47
Real estate - - - -

Total 138 12,423 47 12,608

BThere were no transfers between Level 1and Level 2 during the year.
BShort-term investments includes cash equivalents of $63 million.§

The System Plan enters into futures contracts, traded on requlated exchanges, to manage certain risks and to
maintdin appropriate market exposure in meeting the investment objectives of the SystemPlan. The System Plan
bears the market risk that arises from any unfavorable changes in the value of the seCurities or indexes underlying
these futures contracts. The use of futures contracts involves, to_v_ary|r11% degrees, elements of market risk in excess
ofthe amount recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Conditiori. The %u|del|nes established by the CIP further
redduce risk b%c Ii_rmtlng the net futures positions, for most fund managers, t 15 percent of the market value of the
advisor’s portfolio.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, a portion of short-term investments was available for futures trading. There were

%3 million and $L million of Treasury securities pledged as collateral for the years ended December31, 2015 and
014, respectively.
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Thrift Plan

Employees of the Bank participate in the defined contribution Thrift Plan for Employees of the Federal Reserve
S¥stem (Thrift Plan). The Bank matches 100 percent of the first 6 percent of employeg contributions from the date
of hire and provides an automatic emgloye_r contribution of 1 percent of eligible pay. The Bank’s Thrift Plan
contributions totaled $28 million and $27 million for the years ended Decembér 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
and are reported as a component of “Operating expenses: Salaries and benefits™ in the Consolidated Statements of
Income and Comprehensive Income.

E}lO) POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN RETIREMENT PLANS AND
OSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Retirement Plans _ _ _
In addition to the Bank’s retirement plans, employees who have met certain age and length-of-service requirements
are eligible for both medical and life insurance benefits during retirement,

The Bank and plan participants fund benefits payable under the medical and life insurance plans as due and the
plans have no assets.

Following is a reconciliation ofthe beginning and ending balances ofthe benefit obligation (in millions):

2015 2014

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at January 1 394 343
Service cost benefits earned during the period i 15
Interest cost on accumulated benefit obligation 16 i
Net actuarial loss (gain) (12) 35
Contributions by plan participants 3 3
Benefits paid (18) (20)
Medicare Part D subsidies 1 1

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December 31 401 394

At December 31, 2015 and, 2014, the weighted-average discount rate assumptions used in developing the
postretirement benefit obligation were 4.31 percent and 396 percent, respectively.

Discount rates reflect yields available on high-quality corporate bonds that would (%enerate the cash flows necessary

to pay the plan’s benefits when due. The System Plan discount rate assumption setting convention uses an
unrounded rate.
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Following is a reconciljation of the beginningz and ending balance of the plan assets, and the unfunded
postretirément benefit obligation and accrued postretirement benefit costs (in millions):

2015 2014

Fairvalue ofplan assets at January 1 - -
Contributions by the employer 14 16
Contributions by plan participants 3 3
Benefits paid (18) (20)
Medicare Part D subsidies 1 1

Fairvalue ofplan assets at December 31 . .
Unfunded obligation and accrued postretirement benefit cost 401 394
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive loss are shown below:
Prior service cost 1 1
Miet actuarial (loss) (79) (99)

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss (78) (98)

Accrued E)ostretirement benefit costs are reported as a component of “Accrued benefit costs” in the Consolidated
Statements of Condition.

For measurement purposes, the assumed health-care cost trend rates at December 31 are Rrovided in the table
below. The current health-care cost trend rate for next year is expected to decline ratably each year until achieving
the ultimate trend rate in 2022:

2015 2014
Health-care cost trend rate assumed for next year 1.00% 6.60%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline
(the ultimate trend rate) 4.75% 4.75%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2022 2019

Assumed health-care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reTported_ for health-care plans. A one
%ercentage oint change in assumed health-care cost trend rates would have the following effects for the year ended
ecember 31, 2015 (in millions):

One percentage One percentage

point increase point decrease
Effect on aggregate of service and interest cost components
of net periodic postretirement benefit costs 1 ((75
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation b7 4 3
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The following is a summary of the components of net periodic postretirement benefit expense for the years ended
December 31°(in millions):

2015 2014
Service cost-benefits earned during the period 17 15
Interest cost on accumulated benefit obligation 16 17
Amortization ofnet actuarial loss 8 5
Net periodic postretirement benefit expense 41 37

Estimated amounts that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic
postretirement henefit expense in 2016 are shown below:

Prior service cost -
Net actuarial loss 5
Total 5

Net postretirement benefit costs are actuarially determined using a January 1 measurement date. At January 1, 2015
and 2014, the wmghted-average discount rafe assumptions uséd to determine net periodic postretirement benefit
costs were 3.96 percent and 4.79 percent, respectively.

Net periodic postretirement henefit expense is reported as a component of “Operating expenses: Salaries and
benefits” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income,

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 established a prescription druq
benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D? and a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health-care benefit plans tha
provide benefits that are at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. The benefits provided under the Bank’s
plan to certain participants are at least actuarially equivalent to the Medicare Part D prescription drug benefit. The
estimated effects of the _subde are reflected in actuarial loss in the accumulated postretirement benéfit obligation
and net periodic postretirement benefit expense.
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Federal Medicare Part D subsidy receipts were $0.8 million and $1.0 million in the years encled December 31, 2015
and 2014, respechvelyr._ Expected receipts in 2016, related to benefits paid in the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014, are $0.3 million, respectively.

Following is a summary of expected postretirement benefit payments (in millions):
Without subsidy With subsidy

2016 19 18
2017 19 18
2018 20 19
2019 21 20
2020 22 21
2021 - 2025 131 123

Total 232 219

Postemployment Bengfits . o _ _
The Bank offers benefits to former qualifying or inactive ,emPonees. Postemployment benefit costs are actuariall
determined using a December 31 measurement date and include the cost of providing disability; medical, dental
and vision insurance; and survivor income benefits. The accrued Bostemplo ment benefit costs recognized by the
Bank was $41 million for each ofthe years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This cost is included
as a component of “Accrued bengfit costs” in the Consolidated Statements of Condition. Net periodic
postemployment benefit expense (credit) included in 2015 and 2014 operating expenses were $6 million and $10
million, réspectively, and are recorded as a component of “Operating expenses: Salaries and henefits” in the
Consolidated Staternents of Income and Comprehensive Income.
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Fhlgoﬁ/l%CUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

Following is a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
as of December 31 (in millions):

2015 2014
Amount related Amountrelated
to Fotal to Fotal
Bmountrelated  postretirement accumulated Amountrelated  postretirement accumulated
to defined benefits other other to defined benefits other other
benefit than retirement  comprehensive benefit than retirement ~ comprehensive
retirement plan plans income (loss)  retirement plan plans loss
Balance at January 1 (3.840) (%) (3939) (2.389) (68) (2452)
Change in funded status of benefit plans: - - - - .
Prior service costs arising during the year
Bmortization ofpriorservice cost 93 ‘ 2 SB ]ﬂ) 1 2 ]ﬂ)
Change in prior service costs related to
benefit plans B B 100 100
et actuarial gain (loss) arising during the
year () © (60) (1,657) (39) (1,692)
;mortizati.on ofne!actu_arialloss 223 1 8 B 231 101 1 5 2 1%
Change in actuarial gain (losses) related to
benefit plans . 51 2 m (1,556) (30) (1,580)
Change in funded status of benefit plans -
other comprehensive income (loss) 24 2 264 (1,456) (30) (1,48)
Balance at December 31 (359) (78) (3674) (3840) (%) (3939)

BReclassification isreported as a component of “Operating Expenses: Net periodic pension expense” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and
Comprehensive Income.k
BReclassification is reported as a component of “Operating Expenses: Salaries and benefits” in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive

Income. &
Additional detail regarding the classification of accumulated other comprehensive loss is included in Note 9and 10.
(12) BUSINESS RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

In 2014, the Treasury announced a plan to consolidate.the numper of Reserve Banks providing fiscal agent services
to the Treasury from ten to four. As a result of this initiative, the International Treasury Services operations
performed by the Bank will be transitioned to the Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City.

The Bank had no material business restructuring charges in 2015 or 2014,
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(13) DISTRIBUTION OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{he folllowi)ng table presents the distribution ofthe Bank’s comprehensive income for the years ended December 31
in millions).

2015 2014
Dividends on capital stock 569 549
Transferto (from) surplus (5,909) 363
Earnings remittances to the Treasury
Interest on Federal Reserve notes 56,985 59,625
Required by the Federal Reserve Act, as -
amended by the FAST Act 10,316
Total distribution 61,961 60,537

Before the enactment of the FAST Act, the amount reported as transfer to (from) surplus represented the amount
necessarP/ to equate surplus with capital paid-in, in accordance with the Board of Governor’s policy. Subsequent to
the enactment ofthe FAST Act, the amount reported as transferto (fromz surplus represents the amount necessary to
maintain surplus at an amount equal to the Bank’s allocated portion of the aggregate surplus limitation,

On December 28, 2015, the Reserve Banks reduced the agqregate surplus to the $10 billign limit in the FAST Act

by remitting $19.3 billion to the Treasury. The Bank’s Share of this remittance was $6,420 million, which is

réported as-a component of “Earnings rémittances to the Treasury; Required by the Federal Reserve Act, s

tahmetngled bby the FAST Act” inthe Bank’s Consolidated Statements 0f Income and Comprehensive Income, and in
e table above.

(14) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The FAST Act includes provisions that, effective on January 1, 2016, will change the rate of dividends paid to
member banks by the Bank. See Note 3n for additional information on these FAST Act provisions.

There were no other subseguent events that require adjustments to or disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements as of December 31, 2015. Subsequent events were evaluated through March 8, 2016, which is the date
that the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
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